computer m m :
= m technologies

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
BB R T E B AR 2 A

(Stock Code g7 1X.5%: 00046)

Annual Report 2010
—E—TEFR

L]
wa technologies




Our vision is to deliver
competitive advantages
for enterprises and
government organizations
to progress by optimizing
their information systems efficiency.
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Corporate Profile
NFEN

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited (and its subsidiaries,
collectively referred to as “C&T” or the “Group”) is a leading Information
Technology (“IT") software and services provider in the region involved
in the design, development, delivery and operations of total IT solutions
that meet customers’ business requirements.

Founded in 1991, C&T has been publicly listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (Stock Code: SEHK 00046) since
1998. The Group’s headquarters are based in Hong Kong with offices
as well as research and service centers established in Beijing, Shanghai,
Nanjing and Shenzhen.

The Group has been building its business on a vision to deliver
competitive advantages for enterprises and government organizations
to progress by optimizing their information systems efficiency. Over the
decades, C&T has a long-standing track record in delivering award-
winning, large-scale IT solutions for numerous prestigious corporations
and government organizations.

Building on its competence in applying advanced IT technologies
and proven track records, C&T is providing all round IT solutions
and services comprising systems and network integration services,
application development and support services, enterprise application
software, operation and business process outsourcing services as well as
online e-Government and e-Business services.
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Corporate Information
NEEHR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman)
Leung King San, Sunny
Yan King Shun

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ha Shu Tong
Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ng Kwok Keung

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
1 Queen’s Road Central

Central

Hong Kong

REGISTRATION OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda
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Corporate Information (continued)
NAEER (F)

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

30th Floor, Prosperity Millennia Plaza
663 King’'s Road

North Point

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

The Bank of Bermuda Limited
Bank of Bermuda Building

6 Front Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

www.ctil.com
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Financial Highlights
MBRHE

For the year ended 31 December
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Dear Shareholders,

| 'am glad to report that the Group’s consolidated net profit attributable to
shareholders grew 11.8% to HK$49.1 million (2009: HK$43.9 million),
despite the overall revenue retreated by 15.3% to HK$338.9 million
(2009: HK$400.0 million). During the reporting period, the Group’s
overall gross profit margin increased to 33.4% (2009: 29.9%), while
the overall gross profit fell 5.5% to HK$113.1 million (2009: HK$119.6
million). The financial results exhibited the increased contributions from
the higher margin Application Services segment and the decreased sales
in third party hardware products with lower margin in Integration and
Solutions Services segment.

The basic earning per share for the reporting period is 19.89 Hong Kong
cents (2009: 17.73 Hong Kong cents) or an improvement of 12.2%
when compared with the same period last year. During the reporting
period, the Group generated HK$24.9 million cash flow from operations
and maintained strong financial position with more than HK$287.5
million net cash on hand as of end of December 2010.

The Board recommended the distribution of a final dividend of 6 HK
cents (2009: Final Dividend of 4 HK cents and Special Dividend of 2 HK
cents). Including the 6 HK cents per share interim dividend, the full-year
dividend for the report period is 12 HK cents which is 20% higher than
the previous year (2009: 10 HK cents), marking the 6th consecutive
increment in distribution of full-year dividend.

BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND DEVELOPMENT

The performance of the Group’s Integration Services!!! business has been
improved substantially in the second half of the year when compared
with the first half. The Group repetitively benefited from the business
generated from the strong install base among the large financial services
providers in Mainland China. At the same time, the Group also managed
to expand its footprint to serve other non-financial nature organizations,
particularly the multinational corporations in Eastern China. Riding
on the sustainable growth of the China economy, the Management
anticipates that the demands for the Group’s integration services will
remain strong.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
EEHRE(BE)

During the reporting period, the Group’s Solutions Services® business
managed to secure a number of new sizable contracts. The revenue
generated from such business, however, decreased compared with the
same period last year due to the expiry of a major services contract with
a government department in the third quarter and an unexpected delay
in delivery of a large development services project with a major customer
during the reporting period. Nevertheless, the management foresees
that the delayed project will largely be completed by the first half of year
2011 when most of the related revenue will be recognized. In addition,
the strong order backlog for solutions services carried forward to year
2011 will offset the impact of the expired contract. To further secure its
order pipeline, the Group is also keeping up its momentums to actively
participate in a number of large scale government tenders for IT services
that are pending to be issued during year 2011.

The demands for the Group’s Government Electronic Trading Services!®!
(“GETS”) business were fueled up as the overall import/export trading
activities increased throughout the year. The business contributed
stable revenue and profit during the reporting period. Despite intensified
competition*, the Group continued to increase its share of the overall
GETS market. In particular, the Group has been expanding its service
counters and promotion network through business collaborations with
various retail chain-stores and trade associations.

Leveraging the strong customer base and promotional network of the
Group’s GETS business, the Group has dedicated resources to expedite
the development of new online applications and services in order to
enlarge its revenue base.

The Group’s business process outsourcing!® (“BPQ”) business has also
grown its revenue contributions. During the reporting period, the Group
expanded its service engagement with the leading trade promotion
organization resulting in an expanded scope and scale of services
operation.

The Group’s Application Products'® business continued to generate
healthy recurring maintenance services income from its customer base.
The new version of human resource management (“HRM") product
suite based on latest technology has strengthened the Group’s market
position with increasing adoption by enterprise customers in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. The Group is also allocating additional resources to
expand its software product portfolio in business process management
(“BPM"). As the global economy recovers coupled by growing emphasis
on human capital management, large enterprises are increasing
IT budget for solutions in HRM and BPM arena. The Group is well
positioned to benefit from such market trend.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
TEHRE (B

Looking forward, the management is optimistic in the continuously
improving market demands for the Group’s products and services. The
Management believes that the strong combined software and services
offerings and the solid customer base will provide the Group with
competitive advantage for long term sustainable growth. At the same
time, the Group is committed to persistently invest in long term human
resources development and business system aiming at betterment in
operation efficiency and corporate governance.

Footnotes:

B The Group’s Integration Services business covers the provision of IT systems and
network infrastructure with related design, implementation and on-going support

services.

2 The Group’s Selutions Services business includes (a) Development Services for the
provision of IT solutions implementation and application software development; and
(b) Managed Services for the provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure
outsourcing services.

131 Since 2004, the Group has been granted a license from the HKSAR Government
for the provision of front-end Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS”) for
processing certain official trade-related documents. The Group’s GETS license was
renewed in 2009 for operation of additional 7 years until the end of 2016.

14 On top of the existing two GETS operators (including the Group), the HKSAR
Government appointed an additional GETS service provider which commenced
operations in January 2010.

1ol The Group’s BP0 business comprises the provision of services for the operations and
support of specific business functions or processes of customers. On top of e-Services
related BPO services, the Group also entered into a multi-year BPO contract with a
leading trade promotion organization in Hong Kong in 2009.

el The Group’s Application Products business comprises (i) the provision of HRM as well
as related application software and payroll outsourcing services; and (ii) the provision
of e-procurement and e-tendering application solutions.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2010, the Group had pledged certain of its investment
properties with a carrying value of HK$24.0 million (2009: HK$18.5
million) and bank balances of HK$37.6 million (2009: HK$11.8 million)
to secure certain general bank facilities including interest-bearing bank
borrowings, guarantee/performance bonds facilities granted to the Group
in aggregate of HK$174.2 million (2009: HK$22.3 million) of which
HK$29.2 million (2009: HK$6.1 million) had been utilized as of 31
December 2010.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
Eﬁ#&i (/1E)

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s bank balances and cash (excluded
pledged bank deposit of HK$37.6 million) was HK$287.5 million (2009:
HK$288.1 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. Save as disclosed in note 28 to the financial statement,
the Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these currencies
carry low exchange fluctuation risks.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had bank borrowings of
approximately HK$26.5 million (2009: HK$Nil). The Group’s current
ratio representing current assets divided by current liabilities was 3.1
(2009: 3.7) and the gearing ratio, representing total liabilities divided by
total assets, was 28.3% (2009: 23.7%).

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The remuneration policies adopted for the year ended 31 December
2010 are consistent with those disclosed in the Group’s 2009 Annual
Report. As at 31 December 2010, the Group employed approximately
368 full time employees and 33 contract-based employees (31
December 2009: 357 full time employees and 13 contract-based
employees).

DIVIDEND AND BOOK CLOSE

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK6
cents (2009: a final dividend of HK4 cents and a special dividend of
HK2 cents) per ordinary share for the year. The final dividend will be
distributed on or about 31 May 2011 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 18 May 2011.
The register of members of the Company will be closed from 16 May
2011 to 18 May 2011, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. For the purpose of ascertaining
the members’ entitlement to the recommended final dividend and the
attendance of the forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 13
May 2011.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE (F)

AUDIT COMMITTEE REVIEW

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the Company
the Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2010,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board and the Management, | would like to express
our deep appreciations to all employees, shareholders, customers and
business partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting
period.

Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2011
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Directors and Senior Management
EENSNEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ir. Ng Cheung Shing, aged 49, the founder, Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer, is responsible for the business development, corporate
strategies, company policies and overall management of the Group. Ir.
Ng graduated with BSc. (Hons) in Computer Science from the University
of Manchester in the United Kingdom in 1984, and has over 25 years
of experience in IT industry. Before establishing the Company, Ir. Ng
held executive positions in companies such as Hewlett-Packard Asia
Pacific Ltd. and Sun Hung Kai (China) Ltd. Ir. Ng is the Honorary
Fellow of Vocational Training Council and The Professional Validation
Council of Hong Kong Industries and a fellow member of Hong Kong
Computer Society and Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He is a
Founding Chairman of the Hong Kong Information and Software Industry
Association, Chairman of the Advisory Committee for the Department of
Electronic Engineering of the City University of Hong Kong and Member
of the Advisory Committee for the Department of Computer Science
of the University of Hong Kong and the Department of Computing of
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Ir. Ng was also the awardees
of “Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong”, “Directors of the Year
Awards”, and the “Ten Outstanding Young Persons Award of Hong
Kong”.

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny, aged 49, who joined the Group in 1997,
is responsible for policy making, finance and administration strategies
of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in finance,
administration and planning in the IT industry. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Leung held senior management positions in IBM and its
associated company in Asia Pacific. Mr. Leung graduated from the
Simon Fraser University in Canada with a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration in 1983.

Mr. Yan King Shun, aged 49, is in charge of the Group’s Services
Division. Mr. Yan has over 25 years of experience in the IT industry and
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Computer Society. Before joining
the Group in 2000, Mr. Yan was the Chief Operating Officer of Tradelink
Electronic Commerce Ltd. He also held senior management positions in
large IT and electronic services companies including Accenture. Mr. Yan
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Business Administration in 1985 and received executive
education for global leadership from the Harvard Business School in
1998.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EEREAEERE (E)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ha Shu Tong, aged 62, joined the Board in 1998. Mr. Ha has
involved in the financial industry for over 30 years and has substantial
experience in corporate finance and corporate development.

Professor Matthew K. 0. Lee, Ph.D., aged 51, joined the Board in 1998.
Professor Lee is the Associate Dean (Research, Postgraduate and
Executive Education) and Chair Professor of Information Systems and
E-Commerce at the College of Business of the City University of Hong
Kong (the “University”). Professor Lee is also the Founding Director of
the DBA Programme at the University. He holds a number of university
degrees including BEng (1st Class Honours) in Electronic Engineering,
MSc in Software Engineering, Ph.D. in Computer Science, MBA, LLB,
and LLM in Corporate and Commercial Law. He is a graduate of the
Internet Law Summer Program at Harvard Law School. Professor Lee
has substantial experience and published widely in leading research
journals. He is a professional member of British Computer Society, a
Chartered Engineer (UK Engineering Council) and a Barrister-at-Law
both in Hong Kong SAR and England & Wales. Professor Lee was a
Founding Vice-chairman of the Hong Kong Computer Society e-Business
Special Interest Group. Professor Lee is an Assessor of the Innovative
and Technology Commission for IT and electronics projects, a member
of the Hong Kong Research Grant Council (RGC) Business Studies
Panels and a member of the Advisory Committee on Human Resources
Development in the Financial Services Sector. He is an independent
non-executive director of World Wide Touch Technology (Holdings)
Limited (Stock Code: 1282).

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising), ACA,
CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 57, joined the Board in 2004. Mr. Ting is an
accountant in public practice as managing partner of Messrs. Ting Ho
Kwan & Chan, Certified Public Accountants since 1987. Mr. Ting is
a member of the 9th & 10th Chinese People Political & Consultative
Conference, Fujian. He is now a non-executive director of Chow Sang
Sang Holdings International Limited (Stock Code: 116) and holds
independent non-executive directorship in seven other listed companies
namely, China SCE Property Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1966),
Dongyue Group Limited (Stock Code: 189), JLF Investment Company
Limited (Stock Code: 472), Minmetals Resources Limited (Stock Code:
1208), Texhong Textile Group Limited (Stock Code: 2678), Tong Ren
Tang Technologies Company Limited (Stock Code: 8069) and Tongda
Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 698).

ANNUAL REPORT 2010  Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

BAKHTES

ERRELE 2% R—NANN\FMAES
G ERANZFR-—ERFERTIIF
CERENMEBROTEAREERR -

ZERHE B 5lm RN\ EN
ABEEE - THEEEBHMAB(ZARE))
R 2R & (R - IS E e R gIR
BIDUAREMEGLAETRESRERH
Ho EHBRNAZABIEERELEAR
BZAIMEE - HIFEZEABEMN B8
BFIRETREL(—RESE)  HMHITRE
BEELT - BEEEEEE L IHERE
Bt EREEBELTURATREEEEZEL
B ABMEASREBBLIZETRRE
CEEL -FHRAFELELR TREES
DREBAENY - HAERRENEG 2 HE
g8 B IEM(ARIRHBE)UARES
EERITTIR R R SR B K B R T & B AR K £2A o
FHEAEBENBSE T E TR Bk
M2 AINBIEE -  EHRBAIFREREAFH
EREZEFETIEZESZEZE MR
EHRER) AR EZERFERAD
BREAZESEE - FHEAMERTOE
i) BB AR (MDA 1282) 2B IEH
1TEE -

T R ¥& % 4 MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD * 57 5% * R—ZZ /N4
MAESREg - TAHEEALHARESN - &
—NN\CFRETHESTE T MERZE
BITZHITERA . TEERPEARBA
HEEEFNERETERREEEZEEEE -
ThRAERRBSAREEAEEREER AR (A
MR 116) ZIEATEERER ETAA
ZERNIEBTEE  DAATHREEERE
RAE (MDA 1966) - REEEFRA
AI(BMARSR:189) &€ XBIEREBR A A
(BEm RS 472) - ABERBR A A (B&HD
R5E 0 1208) ~ RELHAEEBR A A (RH
K% 2678) ~ L RAICEREERR D AR
AR (DS - 8069) K iBiE L BT AR
nal(RHmRsE - 698) °



Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EEREREEE (&)

Mr. Allen Lee, aged 46, is the Head of e-Services business of the
Group’s Services Division. Mr. Lee has more than 20 years experience
in IT business and technical management. He has served the Group for
about 10 years. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor's Degree in Electrical and Electronic Engineering in 1987
and received a Master's Degree in Business Administration from the
University of Hong Kong in 1996.

Mr. Cheung Wai Lam, aged 47, is the head of Solutions Services
business of the Group’s Services Division. Mr. Cheung has over 25
years of experience in IT and consulting business ranging from software
development to enterprise solutions implementation and is one of the
founders of Y&A Professional Services Ltd (the “Y&A"). Mr. Cheung
joined the Group in 2006 when Y&A became a subsidiary of the Group.
Before Y&A, he held various consulting positions in IBM in Hong Kong
and Australia. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Science in 1985.

Mr. Li Yuk Wah, John, aged 44, is the Head of Sales and Marketing of the
Group’s Services Division. Mr. Li has more than 20 years of experience
in IT industry with previous senior positions held in major industry
peers including HP/EDS and PCCW Solutions. He graduated from the
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor's Degree in Computer Studies
in 1988 and received Master’s Degrees of Science on Computer Science
and Electronic Commerce & Internet Computing in 1995 and 2002 from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and the University
of Hong Kong respectively.

Mr. Ng Kwok Keung, aged 37, is the Financial Controller of the Group and
the Secretary of the Company. He has over 10 years of experience in
accounting, auditing, finance, and business advisory. Before joining the
Group, he was a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed company and
has worked as a manager of assurance and advisory business services
department of an international accounting firm. Mr. Ng graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts (Honours)
Degree in Accountancy and is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Directors and Senior Management (continued)
EEREAEERE (E)

Mr. Wang Zhi Hui, aged 47, is the Senior Director of C&T (Shanghai)
Company Limited. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 1996. He has over 20
years of experience in the IT industry with extensive sales management
exposure in working for multinational companies such as HP China and
WANG Computer. Mr. Wang graduated from the East China University
of Science and Technology with a Bachelor Degree in Electronic
Engineering in 1986.

Mr. Yeung Sai Cheong, aged 45, is the Vice President of Corporate
Development and Communications of the Group and is responsible
for investor relationship, business development, human resource
management and other corporate communications functions. Mr. Yeung
joined the Group in 1998 and has more than 20 years of IT experience
in sales and business development. He graduated from the University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor's Degree in Computer Studies in 1988 and
received a Master's Degree in Business Administration from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 1999.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEER®RSE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practice (the “CG
code”) as stipulated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) during the reporting year except on the deviations noted below.

The CG code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not have a separate
chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Ng Cheung Shing currently
holds both positions. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
chairman and chief executive officer in the same individual provides
the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allows for more
effective and efficient planning and execution of long-term business
strategies.

The CG Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.
Independent non-executive directors of the Company do not have a
specific term of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the provisions of the bye-laws of the Company. The
Company therefore considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to ensure that its corporate governance practices are similar to those
provided in the CG Code.

THE BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises three executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny

Mr. Yan King Shun

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong

Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EEERRE (B)

One-third of the directors shall retire from office at every annual general
meeting and all directors (including non-executive directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation once every three year in accordance with the
Company’s bye-laws and the CG Code.

The directors’ biographical information is set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 11 to 14.

PRINCIPAL FUNCTIONS

The Board has the ultimate decision on the Group’s overall strategy,
annual budget, annual and interim results, appointment or retirement
of directors, significant contracts and transactions as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board has delegated the
daily operations and administration to the Company’s management.

Every director is entitled to have access to Board papers and related
materials and has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. In addition, every director has separate and independent
access to the Company’s senior management to facilitate them to
make informed decisions. All directors, in the discharge of their duties,
are allowed to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at a reasonable cost to be borne by the Company.

In order to achieve a high standard of corporate governance, the Board
held at least four regularly meetings at approximately quarterly interval
to discuss the overall strategy as well as the operational matters and
financial performance of the Group. Attendance of each director at the
Board meetings is set out below:

Executive directors: HITES

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing RRBLE

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny REFRE

Mr. Yan King Shun FRERE
Independent non-executive directors: BAFHTES:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong EfwLE
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew ENEIL e

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TREXE

ANNUAL REPORT 2010  Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

BRARRHANREETRZEE  REE
BRERBFAGLE=D —ERERME  MA
BEZ(BRINTER) AE=FRERE

e
IN°

EEEREEHENBINZUREZRAR
EEE] —f -

FERE

EXQUASEERERK FEERE FE
LIRS EFRTHRME EXAOR
RHANREMEABREMBEER RER
TR -EFERARABELERTHRER
RB|ARAEEERE

FEFERRNEFE XM RAEBM
AR R MERHE R MR © 1o &
EEN S RBUMEBAARSRELRRE
PBERABRE - IEESAHEEE 215
ATHETEREMNSEERS KBTS
%58 BRALXRARAESE -

REMSKEZLEER  EFQCLETR
LR EREE  FROERHN=[A - &®
AEEBRERBAREEFTARTHRER -
UTAREEHFRESTEEA 2N

Number of meetings
Attended/Eligible to attend

HESER
RE T IR

4/4
4/4
4/4

4/4
4/4
4/4



Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EERRE (H)

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board, there are several Board
Committees namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee formed under the Board, with each
performing different functions.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 September 2004
and comprises of three independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen and two executive Directors namely, Mr. Ng Cheung
Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is currently the chairman
of Remuneration Committee.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

o to review and recommend to the Board, in consultation the
chairman and chief executive officer, the remuneration policy and
packages of the directors and senior management;

° to review and recommend the performance-based remuneration
by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time;

° to review and recommend the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss of
termination of their office or appointment;

° to review and recommend compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct; and

° to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERME (B

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year.
Attendance of each director at the meeting is set out below:

Executive directors: HITEE:

Mr. Ng Cheung Shing REBEAE

Mr. Leung King San, Sunny REFTE
Independent non-executive directors: BYEHTES:
Mr. Ha Shu Tong BRELE
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRENXE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 22 September 2004 and
comprises of the three independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen and two executive directors namely, Mr. Ng Cheung
Shing and Mr. Leung King San, Sunny. Mr. Ha is currently the Chairman
of the Committee.

The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include:

o to develop and maintain a formal and transparent process for the
appointment and re-appointment of members of the Board;

o to recommend the appointment and re-appointment of directors;
and

o to review the independence of independent non-executive

directors, and to ensure that the Board comprises at least one-
third independent non-executive directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
EEERRE (H)

Attendance of each director at the meeting is set out below:

Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Ng Cheung Shing REBLEAE
Mr. Leung King San, Sunny REMEE
Independent non-executive directors: BEHITESE
Mr. Ha Shu Tong ERRLE
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRERE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 24 April 1999 and during the
reporting period, the three independent non-executive directors, namely,
Mr. Ha Shu Tong, Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen are the members of the committee and Mr. Ting was
elected as the chairman of Audit Committee.

The principal duties and roles of the Audit Committee include:

o to consider and recommend to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors, and any questions of resignation of dismissal of
that auditors;

o to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity;

o to develop and implement policy on the engagement of external
auditors to supply non-audit services;

° to review the financial information of the Group, which includes,
annual report and interim report;

o to review the Group’s financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems; and

° to review the external auditors’ management letters and
management’s response.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERME (B

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice every year. Attendance of
each director at the meeting is set out below:

Mr. Ha Shu Tong ERREE
Professor Lee Kwok On, Matthew TR
Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRIBEAE

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young has been re-appointed as the independent auditor of the
Company by shareholders at the last annual general meeting. During
the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent
auditors, Ernst & Young, amounted HK$1,068,000 in respect of audit
services. There have been no non-audit services rendered by the
Company’s independent auditors during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year.

To comply with the CG Code A.5.4, the Company has also adopted
the Model Code as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by certain employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
who are considered to be likely to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information in relation to the Company or its securities.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TERER/RBE ()

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Information of the Company and the Group are delivered to its
shareholders through a number of channels, which includes annual
report, interim report, announcements and circulars. The latest
information of the Company and the Group together with the published
documents are also available on the Company’s website.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. No material internal control aspects
of any significant problems were noted. The Board was satisfied that
the internal control system of the Group has been functioned effectively
during the review year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and have adopted the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the requirements of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (which include all Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditors are
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 32 and 33.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The directors herein present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18
to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2010 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 34 to 141.

An interim dividend of HK6 cents per ordinary share was paid on
30 September 2010. The directors recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK6 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year
to shareholders on the register of members on 18 May 2011. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements
as an allocation of contributed surplus within the equity section of the
statement of financial position.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 143 to 144. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively. Further details of the
Group’s investment properties are set out on page 142.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND AWARDED SHARES

Details of movements in the share capital, share options and awarded
restricted shares of the Company during the year are set out in notes 31,
32 and 33 to the financial statements, respectively.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEERE (HE)

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 34(b) to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2010, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, amounted to HK$161,794,000, of which HK$14,808,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account, in the amount of HK$38,493,000
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 44.0% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 12.4%. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 31.5% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 9.5%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEgRE (H)

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Ng Cheung Shing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Leung King San, Sunny

Yan King Shun

Independent non-executive directors:
Ha Shu Tong

Lee Kwok On, Matthew

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen and Yan King Shun will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The independent non-executive directors have not been appointed for
a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation pursuant to the
Company’s bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Ha Shu Tong, Lee Kwok On, Matthew, and Ting Leung Huel, Stephen,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 11 to 14 of the annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEERE (&)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. In addition, the directors’
remuneration is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee annually.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of the directors in the share
capital and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EEM=

EEHEANRRAG LERRALE - Kty
MENRARRBEFERBEEF 2BF - &
ERRBEARARNEE 2 KEETE - I &
EMemFHEREeTFEN -

EENENzER

FA - RARBHEAM M E AR TR
MBEAEEEBENEBEAZANT  BE
EEERIMEAETEAER -

EERNROKEBRO 2EER AR

N-_ZE—ZTF+-A=+—8 ARQRARE
FBHEREBEEN ([ FHRIBEKRD ) FE352
R EFE 2SR M ATt skt iR IE Ei
TABBETEFRZNZETASTHAE
ARR R  SEERARE REAFH
FE(FEERBHFRBEEROIEXVE) 2 IRAR
MR (R 2w ¢

Number of shares held, capacity
and nature of interest

FisRHBE - o kEREE

Percentage of

Directly Through the Company’s
beneficially controlled issued share
owned corporation capital
HARARE
HiEER EBZEd BT
Name of director 2] AH F ) RAEBD L
Ng Cheung Shing RSB (a) 3,574,000 110,000,000 113,574,000 44.94
Leung King San, Sunny B2 1,010,000 - 1,010,000 0.40
Yan King Shun T=f= 408,000 - 408,000 0.16
4,992,000 110,000,000 114,992,000 45.50

BEAREEERAR —Z-—ZFFRH
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EZgRE (&)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES EERNROREERD 2ERERKXE

AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED) (%&)
Long positions in shares of an associated corporation: —REEIERAZHE
Number of shares Percentage of
REE the associated
Directly Through corporation’s
Name of associated Relationship with beneficially controlled issued share
Name of director corporation the Company  Class of shares owned corporation capital
G AR =
RN R 2 HEER ERZEH ERITRE
EEgE HECEE AR LEA I 40 %8 5l we NG Bk
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company’s Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
REE Technologies subsidiary deferred (note Hi & (b)) TEA
International KRRl EBREHET
Limited MB AT
%’,'HHP/\/VL
BRAF
Notes: BT

(@  The 110,000,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao Lien”), ~ (a)  C.S. (BVI) Limited 2 2 &M B A R BB EHL AR A

a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was entitled A ([ &8t 1) #5748 110,000,000 % iz 15 - R KB 5%
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general £ ABRERCS. (BVI) Limited 2 f% A € £ 77{F 8¢
meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was entitled to exercise or control the EHITE=9 2 A L2 ERE - ™ C.S. (BVI)
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings of Chao Lien. Limited B| B R B R RS LT SIEHITTE
Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in =N LA ERER - Bt - BREBEFHFLBAEE
all shares held by Chao Lien. Bl - RREBEERRBNEHTEE 2 ARG+
HEEER -
(b)  The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien. (b)  fBEEIEA 3,250,000 A 1% EREEIE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the directors B EXHEBEEN R —ZF + = A
had registered an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying =1+ —H - #IEE FH AR A &) = H F (7 885
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was —EE Z MDD T - B RIEZS K
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as  HAE (&I 352 178 T ao ek - SARIE E &
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuantto  fTAEEBETHEF X FHWEETRIZASITH
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers. & ARQ R MR T2 EmgoX R °
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEERE (HE)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouses or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 (the “Adoption Date”). Pursuant to the
Award Scheme, shares of the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) are
granted to eligible employees (including directors) of the Group until the
10th anniversary from the Adoption Date. The Company shall also pay
cash to the appointed trustee company for its acquisition and holding
upon trust of the Awarded Shares for the benefit of these employees
and directors. The Awarded Shares will then be transferred to these
employees and directors upon vesting. The aggregate number of shares
to be awarded under the Award Scheme throughout its duration shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in note 33 to the financial statements.

EEREROIES 2EF

BRI RE R R 81 | e[ A BR HIA ) 22 Bh AT &1
MENREE SN RAFERERERE - 8
BRYTEMEFARES QA ZEBIARKF T
LAIFEB AR DR RN K ES MBS 2 EF
FBEMZESENCERETR  ARF
S EATAAIPH B R BB AT SRR 2 BE - Al
EEREBEATMEAMAAER 2 ENMEE -

B R E

RABMT 2 BRETE(EFE)D  FEA
HARAEBEXBKINELER 2 A ER2EE
SRR ERMR - 58 2 F BRI ER
EHFFEI2WE -

195 R F R AR G PO I 1718 B
SR -

BRFIR D EREET 8

ARRARZBEENFRAA=-FT B (ERHA
HA )R A PR HII A 10 52 Eh T 81 ([ 52BhET &l ]) -
RIEEEE TS - A ARG ([EERRD]) 5
KPRz ETEAFIERTASEGER
EBE(BREESE) AR ANBERETEXTA
RABARABEBHEENES 2 M= UET
EABERERMEELNES - BERHD
HEeBREBREREEHEENES - &
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EZgRE (&)

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BERFIRG RS (F)

The following table illustrates the number of and movements of the TXRFIHEE-_ET—FTF+_A=+—HIit
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme for the year ended 31 FERNEEHEIE FNEFRMHEE RHE
December 2010. & o

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

AEBEBROE
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1 January during during during 31 December Vesting of fair value
of participant 2010 the year the year the year 2010 Award date  Awarded Shares per share
SHEEMA R=Z-2F R=Z-2F SRmE
B9 bl —A—B SRERP FHAEHRE FAERK T=A=t-B RUXBEL BEXBRG THLVLE
HK$
BT
Directors
i)
Ng Cheung Shing 920,000 - (140,000) - 780,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 0.61
RRB —“ZT\E  t030June 2015
+A=-+=H “ETNE
AAZTHE
“E-hE
~A=+H
Yan King Shun 920,000 - (140,000) - 780,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 0.61
25 ZZTT\F  t030June 2015
+A=+=H —TTNEF
~NA=ZtTARE
—E-hE
~A=TH
1,840,000 - (280,000) - 1,560,000
Other employees
Hittlg g
In aggregate 2,780,000 - (410,000) - 2,370,000 23 July 2008 30 June 2009 0.61
FCE ZTT\F  t030June 2015
+AZ+=H ZETNF
~NA=ZTAE
—E-RE
~A=+H
In aggregate - 1,270,000 - (160,000) 1,110,000 1 March 2010 30 April 2011 1.35
FCE —Z-FF 1030 April 2015
=A—H —2——F
mA=+AZE
—Z-1F
mA=+H

4,620,000 1,270,000 (690,000) (160,000) 5,040,000
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEgwE (@)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

FTERRREMALTRARG REBER
0z s

As at 31 December 2010, the following interests of more than 5% of the
issued share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

RZE—ZF+-F=+—H UWTFAARQ
AE R AR IR B 5 K HAE 1601 55 336 1548
EHEEZECMAGEZEITRARBERESS
LA B2 #Eas

Long positions:

Name of shareholder of the Company

ANBRREE, AR

Capacity and
nature of interest

FoRERME

"R

Number
of share
options held

Number of Percentage of the
ordinary Company’s issued
shares held share capital

Fifs ERRTERT s

HERYE BRABD L BREHE

Chao Lien Technologies Limited (@) Directly beneficially 110,000,000 43.53 -
BEEERAERRF owned
BEREREE
C.S. (BVI) Limited (a) Through a controlled 110,000,000 43.53 -
corporation
iy bR e VNE]
Puttney Investments Limited (“PIL") (b) Directly beneficially 29,148,938 11.53 -
owned N
EREREE
Hutchison International Limited (“HIL") (b) Through a controlled 29,148,938 11.53 -
corporation
FERZEG A
Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL”) (b) Through a controlled 29,148,938 11.53 -
M EHER AR ([FE]) corporation
BRZEHINF
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (b), (c) Through a controlled 29,148,938 11.53 -
(“CKH") corporation
RIBZ(EBR)ARLARI(RED BRI AF
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company (b), (c) Through a controlled 29,148,938 11.53 -
Limited (“TUT1") corporation
iy bR e VNE]
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation (b), (c) Through a controlled 29,148,938 11.53 -
Limited (“TDT1") corporation
iy bR e VNE]
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (b), (c) Through a controlled 29,148,938 11.53 -
(“TDT2") corporation
iy bR e VNE]
Li Ka-Shing (b), (c) Through a controlled 29,148,938 11.53 -
=M corporation
by bR e VNE]
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially 26,782,000 10.60 -
EiS0p'e owned

BEREGHA

MEZASGEEERAT —Z2-—25FRK
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEgRE (&

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” of this
report.

PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of HWL. By virtue of the SFO, HWL and HIL were deemed to be interested in the
29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (“TUHL"), of which each of Li Ka-Shing, Li Tzar
Kuoi, Victor, and Li Tzar Kai, Richard is interested in one-third of the entire issued
share capital, owns the entire issued share capital of TUT1. TUT1 as trustee of The
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust, together with certain companies of which TUT1 as trustee of
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more than
one-third of the voting power at general meetings, hold more than one-third of the
issued share capital of CKH. Subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the
exercise of more than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL.

In addition, TUHL also owns the entire issued share capital of TDT1 as trustee of
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust (“DT1”) and TDT2 as trustee of another
discretionary trust (“DT2"). Each of TDT1 and TDT2 holds units in The Li Ka-Shing
Unity Trust.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Li Ka-Shing, being the settlor and may being regarded
as a founder of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the SFO, TDT1, TDT2, TUT1 and
CKH were deemed to be interested in the 29,148,938 shares of the Company held by
PIL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” above, had registered an interest or a short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors (continued)
EEERE (HE)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company and the Group are set
out in note 36 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors

of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2011

HREE
BRAARRIRARE 2 HARBEFE - AR
BRSSP RE 36
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B2 REN RS

Elf ERNST & YOUNG
=7 ik

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF COMPUTER AND TECHNOLOGIES
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 141, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2010, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

18 March 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement 4 & UkzER

Year ended 31 December 2010 H#E -_Z—ZF+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FET
REVENUE WA 5 338,851 400,012
Cost of sales HE KA (225,741) (280,372)
Gross profit EF 113,110 119,640
Other income and gains, net N NS 5 8,152 2,823
Fair value gains/(losses), net: ANEEWRE(BB)FE -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELESARZ
profit or loss M EE 615 4202
Derivative financial instruments — PTHEBE TR - T8 E8BIE
transactions not qualifying as hedges Hh22 5 (202) -
Investment properties B 7,440 2,836
Selling and distribution costs THE KD HAA (31,797) (33,069)
General and administrative expenses — M EATHA Y (44,401) (45,269)
Other expenses, net Hih 5 %58 2,829 (442)
Finance costs BT & H 7 (39) -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AT R 6 55,707 50,791
Income tax expense SR x 10 (6,650) (6,908)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERER 49,057 43,883
Attributable to: THI AT ¢
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZ Y =N 11 49,057 43,880
Non-controlling interests FEFE I M - 3
49,057 43,883
2010 2009
—E—FF —EETNF
HK cents HK cents
B B
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO R ARIZBERKREEWN
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BRER
THE PARENT 13
Basic HAR 19.89 17.73
Diluted e 19.58 17.50

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are disclosed

in note 12 to the financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #ZR4& 2 HE &R

Year ended 31 December 2010 HiEZ—ZE—ZF+—-A=+—HILEE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Available-for-sale investment:
Changes in fair value

Reclassification adjustments for gains
included in the consolidated income

statement
—gain on disposal

Exchange differences on translation of

foreign operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

AR A

Hib 2 ERA

AL R -
ATEED

A A A M 2 BRIET
2 EH PR

- h &

BEBIEBRELZ
EXER
AEEHEMEERA -
HORR PR

AEEEERALE

O A LR
BATRAA
SRR

2010 2009

—g-%8F —2INF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
3 TR T
49,057 43,883

200 178
5 - (28)
200 150

752 =

952 150

50,009 44,033

50,009 44,030

- 3

50,009 44,033
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %éﬂjﬁ%ﬂﬁ;ﬁﬁﬁﬁl ! '-‘!‘ ?

31 December 2010 =T —ZFF+=-HA=+—H |

2010 2009
—2-2F _"TTAF

Notes HK$’000
B =E Fi T

HK$'000
T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE KRR 14 7,649 11,267
Investment properties KEMZFE 15 32,278 27,737
Goodwill EEs 16 25,813 25,813
Other intangible assets H|mpEE 17 =
Available-for-sale investment Al HERE 20 1,850 1,650
Financial assets at fair value through BATERIBZAE Y

profit or loss B 754 = 25 847 861
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE E 30 - 591
Total non-current assets IEmBEELE 68,437 67,919
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Held-to-maturity securities BFEEHE S 19 - 498
Inventories FE 21 18,482 5,289
Trade and bills receivables FEUE SR R RN 22 74,441 61,764
Prepayments, deposits and other AR -~ me R EAEBGR

receivables 23 9,076 5,363
Due from contract customers A HRFEFRIA 24 7,530 6,221
Financial assets at fair value through BRATESEBRARZPBEE

profit or loss 25 10,648 12,925
Tax recoverable ARENIR 1,907 39
Pledged bank deposits BEHIRITER 26 37,560 11,829
Cash and cash equivalents BEMhERBESEE 26 287,501 288,053
Total current assets mEEEAE 447,145 391,981
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables, other payables and JETE SRR - E b EA RIE &

accruals FEETFRI8 27 95,140 85,475
Derivative financial instruments PTEMBEIA 28 202 =
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M BRITEE 29 26,520 =
Due to contract customers ENAHNRFERIE 24 2,658 1,583
Deferred revenue RIEU A 6,186 9,699
Tax payable JESRIA 11,739 9,822
Total current liabilities mEBEEE 142,445 106,579
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 304,700 285,402
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES AEERAEEE 373,137 353,321
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) %34 Bi#5Hk R %E (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-H=+—H

2010 2009
—EB-=F ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET T
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES @EERAEEE 373,137 353,321
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBES
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIAAE 30 3,429 2,309
Net assets BEFE 369,708 351,012
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &2 T#EHE AE(GEZR
Issued capital BEITRR A 31 25,273 25,273
Reserves EX=] 34(a) 329,627 310,853
Proposed final and special dividends BORREA M AF R B 12 14,808 14,886
Total equity e 369,708 351,012
Ng Cheung Shing R R Leung King San, Sunny 25 7
Director &% Director &%
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #R& %S E)R

Year ended 31 December 2010 B Z —ZE—ZF+_-A=+—HIEZ

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATEEAE
Shares held Available-
under the Share- for-sale Proposed
Share restricted based Asset  investment Exchange final and Nor-
Issued premium Contributed share award  payment  Goodwill revaluation revaluation  Reserve fluctuation  Retained  special controlling
capital  account  suplus  scheme  reserve  reseve  reserve’  reserve funds ~ reserve profits dividends Total interests
REERH
R %R HE
Rt e REGR BEEf REEfR EiRE B Fan
BE #AE% 1] B B BRES fff REEN REARE ] B
HKS000  HKS000  HK$000 $000  HK§000 HK$000  HK$000 0 HKS000  HK$000
THT T TEL P £ T TER
(note 34(a))
(HiE34a)
At 1 January 2009 R=2ENE-A-R 25386 237452 2602 @) 181 (20) 233 340 73 L4  58367 19909 336479 (753)  335,7%
Proit for the year KERAF = - - - - - - - - - 13880 - 3880 3 4388
Other comprehensive income.~~~ AEEE(2EMA -
for the year:

Changes in fair value of AHERELTE
avalable-forsale investment, £ K HE

net of tax - - - - - - - 150 - - - - 150 - 150

Total comprehensive income TEESANAEE

for the year - - - - - - - 150 - - 1380 - 44030 3 403
Issue of shares Bkb 3l 101 1,041 - - - - - - - - - - 1,142 - 1,142
Repurchese of shares BERA 3l (214) - (1504) = = = - - - - - - 1 -y
Vesting of shares held under AR IR ZEAE

the restricted share award BTRAOEE

scheme 3 - - - 3% (325) = = = - - - - - - -
Share award arrangement fith B R4 B - - - - 73 - - - - - - - 732 = 73
Reduction of share premium RO RERRER

account and transfer FHARR

o contributed surplus 3l - (200,000) 200,000 = - - - - - - - - - - -
Acquiston of non-controlling iRkl 8%

interests - - - - - - - - - - - - - 750 750
Final and special 2008 SE-TTN\ERER

didends declared KlRe - - - - - = - - - - (199 97 = )
Iterim 2009 idend “ERNERERE 1 - - oge - - - = - - - - SR )
Proposed final and special 2009 WE-EZAERSR

dividends BRIkE 12 - - (14880 - - - - - - - - 1486 - - -
At 31 December 2009 R=ZENE+=A=1-A 25213 38493 176488 (3946 2228 (1221) 23 490* 733 L1140 102247 14886 351012 - 31012

#  The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an owner-occupied * BEEMEHEHETEAVMEN_ZZHF—H—H
property to an investment property carried at fair value, before 1 January 2009. AR E RaE AR AN T EVREZIREMEES -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued) 4R & #EZ B EIR (&)
Year ended 31 December 2010 HiZ-—ZE—ZF+-A=+—HILEE

Aeributable to owners of the parent

SATRANEL
Shares held Available-
under the Share- for-sale
Share restricted based Asset  investment Exchange Proposed
Issued ~premium  Contributed ~share award payment  Goodwill revaluation  revaluation Reserve  fluctuation  Retained final
capital account surplus scheme Teserve Tesene reserve reserve funds Tesenve profits dividend
REARH
Rt%E AHE
ifHEE  RBRR BEEff REER EXEE
BEfRE EON: 2Bt R HRERE B R BREe #E  REE RE  REEE
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER THRL T TEx TR Tén TEr TR Tén T TR TR
fe 34 i (note 34(a))
f ) 34(a))
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-T5-F-A 2213 38493 176,488 (3,946) 2228 (1,221) 233 490 3 1,114 102,241 14886 351,012
Proftfor the year RERET - - - - - - - - - - 49087 - 4907
Other comprehensive income KEEEMZANA
for the year:
Changes in fai value of TEHEREATERY
available-for-sale investment, Bl
net of tax - - - - - - - 200 - - - - 200
Exchange differences on translaion BB EHEEE
of foreign operations EizE - - - - - - - - - 752 - - 752
Total comprehensive income TEERENALE
for the year - - - - - - - 200 - 752 49,057 - 50,009
Purchase of shares held under the BEEERHRD DTS
resfricted share award scheme BTRA kS| - - - (3,048) - - - - - - - - (3,048)
Vesting ofshares held under the ARRRG RRE
restricted share award scheme BTRAEE kS| - - - 589 (589) - - - - - - - -
Share award arrangements R EBRE 3 - - - - 1,231 - - - - - - - 1,237
Disposal of an investment property ~ HE—BRENE - - - - - - (233) - - - 311 - 78
Final and special 2009 ER-ETNERER
dividends declared ke - - 114 - - - - - - - - (14888)  (14772)
Interim 2010 dividend “2-TEAHRE 12 - - (14808 - - - - - - - - - (14808
Proposed final 2010 dividend BR-T-TERHRE 12 - - (14808 - - - - - - - - 14,808 -
At31 December 2010 R-E-FE+-f=+-H 25213 38493 146986  (6,405) 2816 (1,221 = 690* 133* 1,866*  151,615* 14808 369,708

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$329,627,000 (2009: * ZERELEERERAVBERABRRAZGAHE
HK$310,853,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 329,627,000 7T (ZTZ N4 : 310,853,000/7T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows S 2BE & RER =

Year ended 31 December 2010 H#E -_Z—ZF+_-_A=+—HILtFE

2010 2009
—g-®F —TINF
HK$'000

BT

Notes HK$’000
B F&T

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& ZFZEH2RERE
Profit before tax: BrFLATE ) - 55,707 50,791
Adjustments for: e
Financial costs B1 7% & 7 39 -
Interest income FE A (3,077) (2,254)
Dividend income from listed and EmkIEETREZ
unlisted investments ISR PN 5 (435) (327)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE  BMELREBEBEZ
property, plant and and equipment B8 (zs) 6 (1,465) 11

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEREHERE Y N
investments 5 - (28)

40

Loss/(gain) on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Fair value gains, net:
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Investment properties

Depreciation

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment of prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Reversal of impairment of trade
receivables

Reversal of trade receivables written off

Impairment of amounts due from
contract customers

Reversal of impairment of amounts due
from contract customers

Equity-settled share-based payment
expense

HERAHELBE AR Z
BEEZER/ (k)

NHEWEFEE
BAEGBERARZ
MBAE

BREME

wE

J& W' 5 B BURE

BNFE - R#ER

HAth & YR IR R (E

Ol fe W 'S 5 AR FORE

1% [0l [l W 2B 5 AR SR 3
e A K P FIRRE

BERKENEFFRIERE
P 5 A RUAD 15 3R BA X2

IR /()

R R 595 7 R
R,/ ()

ERANEFRERD, (E1)

Increase in prepayments, deposits and TERRIE ~ Ze REMERK
other receivables FIELE N

Increase in derivative financial instruments 74 817 T B i

Increase in trade payables, other payables JEE FBRX -~ E b fEfT F0IE K&

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills
receivables

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from
contract customers

and accruals JEET R IALE NN
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to ENEHEEFIERE N, CRL)
contract customers
Decrease in deferred revenue PEFEW AR >

Decrease in amount due to a FES — AT A Bl — B IEFEAR
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary A% & 28R,

Cash generated from operations REETEETSIRE
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHEEREN
Overseas taxes paid BERUSINHTE

Net cash flows from operating activities TETEEMEREREFR

ANNUAL REPORT 2010  Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

5 (277) 1,906
6 (615) (4,272)
6 (7,440) (2,836)
6 2,192 2,461
6 296 3,492
6 600 =
6 (2,508) (3)
6 (52) (42)
6 - 3,435
6 (565) (6,440)
58 1,237 732
43,637 46,626

(13,193) 6,037

(10,491) 12,979

(744) 10,221

(1,689) (1,567)

28 202 =
9,641 14,523

1,075 (57)

(3,513) (371)

- (605)

24,925 87,786

(4,391) (44)

(549) (180)

19,985 87,562




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) Z28E &S RER ()

Year ended 31 December 2010 HiZ-—ZE—ZF+-A=+—HILEE

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Dividends received from listed and
unlisted investments

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment

Purchases of listed investments

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Held-to-maturity securities settled

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank
deposits

Decrease/(increase) in non-pledged time
deposits with original maturity of more
than three months when acquired

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares

Repurchase of shares

Purchase of shares under the restricted
share award scheme

New bank loans

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes,
net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with original
maturity of less than three months
when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
the statement of cash flows

REEDIRHESREFHE

REZBZRERE
B UHLE
B EmKIFLEMRE MBS

BEWE  BENMREEB

BEEMRE
HEME - BFELREERE
P 1S 5RI8
EREREIHES
HER I EREMERIA

HERAFHELREARZ
BB EEFS A
BERRITEZR D, (M)

WiER R MEEB=EA 2
S E BEROR D, ()

REGHMARSREFHE

MEFHCRERE
BT PTIS R

iAEE G

B E AR B 22 RT3
RN

FERITER

EfRE

ERFE
MEEBIRRESREFE

REREARGEEY
2 0% 48

2R RERRSAE
EEEE 2 EFR

FRZAERERREEE

RERERREEEFRDIT

B MR1THT
WiErR R HE T HEE=EA
Z B HIE K

AR RERZEAEZ N
EFRRGEE

31
31

8¢

26

26

NERGERERRAR

2010 2009
—E-=F —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F& T T
19,985 87,562
3,077 2,254
330 327
(859) (2,110)
(23,446) (10,794)
4,057 94
498 -

- 459
26,734 9,301
(25,731) 2,499
3,346 (8,117)
(11,994) (6,087)
- 1,142
- (1,718)
(3,048) =
26,520 -
(29,580) (29,653)
(15) =
(6,123) (30,229)
1,868 51,246
278,796 227,550
926 -
281,590 278,796
133,577 58,835
148,013 219,961
281,590 278,796

—E-ZFER
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Statement of Financial Position Bi#&AR % 3T

31 December 2010 —ZE—ZF+=-HA=+—H

2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AT ZZE 18 220,954 252,742
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments TEfT IR 23 259 257
Cash and cash equivalents BEhERBEEE 26 1,433 1,122
Total current assets MEEERE 1,692 1,379
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accruals FE=t 3R 27 209 281
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 1,483 1,098
Net assets BEFE 222,437 253,840
EQUITY =
Issued capital BT A 31 25,273 25,273
Reserves EE 34(b) 182,356 213,681
Proposed final and special dividends TR R HA IR B AR B 12 14,808 14,886
Total equity Em4RE 222,437 253,840
Ng Cheung Shing R KB Leung King San, Sunny 3 2 37
Director % Director 8%

ANNUAL REPORT 2010  Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



Notes to Financial Statements Bi#&3R & HisE

31 December 2010 —E—ZEF+=-A=+—H

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of
the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at 30th Floor, Prosperity Millennia Plaza, 663
King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

° sales of computer networks and system platforms,
and the provision of system and network integration,
information technology (“IT”) solutions development and
implementation, and related maintenance services;

o provision of enterprise software applications and related
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing and
e-business, and related maintenance services; and

o property and treasury investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
derivative financial instruments, available-for-sale investment and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bf#&$R 4 Mist (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Basis of consolidation

Basis of consolidation from 1 January 2010

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2010. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
and dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling
interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

2.1
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bf#&#R &5 Mist (&)
31 December 2010 —E—ZF+=-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Basis of consolidation prior to 1 January 2010

Certain of the above-mentioned requirements have been applied
on a prospective basis. The following differences, however, are
carried forward in certain instances from the previous basis of
consolidation:

o Acquisitions of non-controlling interests (formerly known as
minority interests), prior to 1 January 2010, were accounted
for using the parent entity extension method, whereby the
differences between the consideration and the book value
of the share of the net assets acquired were recognised in
goodwill.

° Losses incurred by the Group were attributed to the non-
controlling interest until the balance was reduced to nil.
Any further excess losses were attributable to the parent,
unless the non-controlling interest had a binding obligation
to cover these. Losses prior to 1 January 2010 were not
reallocated between non-controlling interest and the parent
shareholders.

o Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the
investment retained at its proportionate share of net asset
value at the date control was lost. The carrying amount of
such investment at 1 January 2010 has not been restated.

2.1
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bf#&$R 4 Mist (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Additional
Exemptions for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment Transactions

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 39 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged Iltems
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners
HKFRS 5 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current
included in Improvements  Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
to HKFRSs issued in Operations — Plan to sell the controlling
October 2008 interest in a subsidiary

Improvements to HKFRSs ~ Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

2009 issued in May 2009
HK Interpretation 4 Amendment to HK Interpretation 4
Amendment Leases — Determination of the Length

of Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong
Land Leases

HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause

The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bi#53R 25 /MisE (&)
31 December 2010 —E—ZTF+_-_A=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements:

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKAS 12 Amendments

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 32 Amendment

HK(FRIC)-Int 14

Amendments

HK(FRIC)-Int 19

Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Limited
Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters 2

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets *

Financial Instruments ®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes
— Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets ®

Related Party Disclosures 3

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Classification of Rights Issues !

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement3

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
Equity Instruments 2
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued /mprovements
to HKFRSs 2010 which sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and
clarifying wording. The amendments to HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010,
whereas the amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS
34 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2011 although there are separate transitional

provisions for each standard.

I Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and
revised HKFRSs would have a significant impact on its results of

operations and financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations from 1 January 2010

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures
the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to fair value as at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is
deemed to be an asset or liability will be recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified
as equity, it shall not be remeasured until it is finally settled within
equity.
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31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Business comhinations and goodwill (continued)

Business combinations from 1 January 2010 (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010  Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Business combinations prior to 1 January 2010 but after 1 January
2005

In comparison to the above-mentioned requirements which were
applied on a prospective basis, the following differences applied to
business combinations prior to 1 January 2010:

Business combinations were accounted for using the purchase
method. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
formed part of the acquisition costs. The non-controlling interest
was measured at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for as
separate steps. Any additional acquired share of interest did not
affect previously recognised goodwill.

When the Group acquired a business, embedded derivatives
separated from the host contract by the acquiree were not
reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination
resulted in a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modified the cash flows that otherwise would have been required
under the contract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and only if, the Group
had a present obligation, the economic outflow was more likely
than not and a reliable estimate was determinable. Subsequent
adjustments to the contingent consideration were recognised as
part of goodwill.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated reserves

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30")
in 2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against
consolidated reserves in the year of acquisition. On the adoption of
HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated against consolidated
reserves and is not recognised in the income statement when all or
part of the business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or
when a cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes
impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bf#&$R 4 Mist (&)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii)
has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group;

(c) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (b);

(d) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (b) or (c); or

(e) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the income statement in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTTHEME(H)

54

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 2%-4%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease terms
and 20%
Computer equipment and 20%-33,%
software
Furniture, fixtures and 18%-25%
other equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of property for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property occupied
by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change in use,
and any difference at that date between the carrying amount and
the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
expected commercial lives of the underlying products/services
not exceeding five years, commencing from the date when the
products/services are available for commercial use.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the income statement so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity securities and available-for-sale
financial investments, as appropriate. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables, deposits and
other receivables, available-for-sale investment, held-to-maturity
securities and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bf#&$R 4 Mist (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of sale in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by HKAS 39. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of
financial position at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets
and management’s intent to sell them in the foreseeable future
significantly changes, the Group may elect to reclassify these
financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets. This evaluation
does not affect any financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option at designation.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. Reassessment only occurs
if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured
at amortised cost less any allowance for impairment. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified
as available-for-sale are those which are neither classified as held
for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Debts securities in this category are those which are intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment valuation reserve until the investment
is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the income statement, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the income statement and removed from
the available-for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest and
dividends earned are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively, and are recognised in the income statement
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bf#&$R 4 Mist (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinqguency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bf %3R4 Mizt (&)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (that is the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together
with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the
income statement.

24 FESTHBRHE (&)

M EERE (&)
BB AS R Z B E

SLRB R AR 2 B EEMS - A
SEELESRENEERENBENZ
MBEESIRAS EERENTBEKR
ZHBEE  FHEREFEEBRER
e MAKRERELETEEBRBERE
ERFEZHBEEE(ERERET)
FHREE AZBREESRA—MAR
BUEERRSE M BEEAR - Wik
M EEHEZAV T EER S FEM
18 - RERIFFHERE 2 EE - HRERE
B THERIEERIAR MM
AR SEERENEA

HWAEEERERRLIRREER - RIE
BeREZEERAERGFARKERS
nE(TEERHAELZRKERER)
RECEZEAE - Bt ARRESRELZ
RENIHBEEZREERME (B1Y)
RERRFEZERME)HA - WE
RIRZE MRS - At EERRES
BFRATRERSEAERFIE

ZAEREES BB EBBERMR
L MEESRR KRS RER - F2UK
ARBADREEERRFEES - ARA
FRAEREREERBATRRRESR
EZHNERZRN - EHRKETAER -
S 55 5 75K e B MK ok TR S [R) A ) 4 B R
i

MR E R AR GREB RS ERER
ERZE 2 ZREMEMNSRD - AlE
3B B AR AR NSRSt AT RE R 2 Rk
BEER o MR ERWERTM S - %R
W Bl E A E R -

MBZGEEERAR —ZT-—ZFFRH

61



62

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bf#&$R 4 Mist (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-
sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of an investment below its cost. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the
fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on
equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed
through the income statement. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statement. Future interest income continues to be accrued
based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest
income is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment losses
on debt instruments are reversed through the income statement,
if the increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bf %3R4 Mizt (&)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Group determines

the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the
case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction

costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
financial liabilities included in accruals, derivative financial

instruments and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by HKAS 39. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading
are recognised in the income statement. The net fair value gain
or loss recognised in the income statement does not include any

interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate method

amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation

is included in finance costs in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,

when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income

statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.
For financial instruments where there is no active market, the fair
value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions;
reference to the current market value of another instrument which
is substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and

other valuation models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the income statement.

Shares held under the restricted share award scheme

Where shares of the Company are purchased from the market for
a restricted share award scheme, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as “Shares
held under the restricted share award scheme” and deducted
from equity.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of finished goods and work in progress, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents service fees received in advance
from the rendering of the corresponding services. Revenue
is recognised and deferred revenue is released to the income
statement when the corresponding services have been rendered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can

be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership,
nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of integration and solutions services
and application services (other than the sale of goods or
the provision of maintenance services), on the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the accounting
policy for “Contracts for services” below, or when the
relevant services have been performed;

(c) from the provision of maintenance services, on a time
proportion basis over the terms of the respective contract, or
when the relevant services have been performed;

(d) from the sale of listed investments, on the transaction dates
when the relevant contract notes are executed;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(e) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms;

(f)  interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

and

(g) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive

payment has been established.

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services comprises the
agreed contract amount. Contract costs comprise direct equipment
and material costs, labour and other costs of personnel directly

engaged in providing the services and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services (other than those that
are recognised on a time proportion basis over the period of the
contract or when the relevant services have been performed, as
appropriate) is recognised based on the percentage of completion
of the transaction, provided that the revenue, the costs incurred
and the estimated costs to completion can be measured reliably.
The percentage of completion is established by reference to the
costs incurred to date as compared to the total costs to be incurred
under the transaction, or the value of services performed to date
as a percentage of the value of total services to be performed
under the transaction. Where the outcome of a contract cannot be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent that

the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are

anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is treated
as an amount due from contract customers. Where progress
billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount

due to contract customers.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

(CONTINUED)

Share-hased payment transactions

The Company operates two equity-settled, share-based
compensation schemes including a share option scheme and
a restricted share award scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. Employees of the Group
(including directors of the entities comprising the Group) receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification, that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous paragraph. All
cancellations of equity-settled transaction awards are treated
equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and shares held under
the restricted share award scheme is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only
to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had
not vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1
January 2005.

Other employee henefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at
the end of each reporting period is permitted to be carried forward
and utilised by the respective employees in the following year.
An accrual is made at the end of each reporting period for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by
the employees and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Other employee henefits (continued)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the schemes. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the schemes. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently administered
funds. When an employee leaves the Mandatory Provident
Fund Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
retirement benefit scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s
employer contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group may be reduced by the relevant amount
of forfeited contributions. In respect of the Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), the
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central retirement
benefit scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central retirement benefit scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central retirement
benefit scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final and special dividends proposed by the directors, excluding
those relating to the Company’s own shares held under the
Company’s restricted share award scheme, are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits and/or other distributable
reserves within the equity section of the statement of financial
position, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Dividends (continued)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period.

All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets

or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of

these properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied

properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a

property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Income taxes

Significant judgement is involved in determining the Group’s
provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
computations for which the ultimate tax determination is subject to
the agreement by the relevant tax authority. The Group recognises
liabilities for such transactions based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised,
such differences will impact the income tax in the period in which
such determination is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2010 was HK$25,813,000 (2009: HK$25,813,000).
Further details are given in note 16 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting
period. Non-financial assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at their fair value. The fair value at
the end of each reporting period was based on a valuation on these
properties conducted by an independent firm of professionally
qualified valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
making assumptions on certain market conditions. Favourable
or unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties and
the corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss recognised in
the income statement.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a loan/receivable is impaired.
To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment,
the Group considers factors including, inter alia, the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtors and
default or significant delay in payments.

The Group maintains an allowance for the estimated loss arising
from the inability of its debtors to make the required payments.
The Group makes its estimates based on the ageing of its
receivable balances, debtors’ creditworthiness, and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of its debtors was
to deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis of
making the allowance.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are contained in note 30 to the financial
statements.

Impairment of an available-for-sale investment

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale and
recognises movements in their fair values in equity. When the fair
value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline
in value to determine whether there is an impairment that should
be recognised in the income statement. At 31 December 2010,
no impairment losses have been recognised for an available-for-
sale investment (2009: Nil). The carrying amount of the available-
for-sale investment was HK$1,850,000 (2009: HK$1,650,000).
Further details are included in note 20 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in note
2.4 to the financial statements. Determining the amounts to be
capitalised requires management to make assumptions regarding
the expected future cash generation of the assets, discount rates
to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of assets of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovation and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles. Useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end. The Group will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or it will write
off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal. These estimates are based on the current market
condition and the historical experience in selling goods of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
market conditions. The Group will reassess the estimations at the
end of each reporting period.

Contracts for services

The Group recognises certain contract revenue by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, when the outcome of a contract can be estimated
reliably. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the
proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to date
bear to the estimated total contract costs to be incurred under the
transaction, or value of services performed to date as a percentage
of the value of total services to be performed under the transaction.
Significant assumptions are required to estimate the total contract
costs and/or the stage of completion, and the recoverable variation
works that will affect the stage of completion. The estimates are
made based on past experience and knowledge of management.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three

reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the integration and solutions services segment engages in
the sales of computer networks and system platforms, and
the provision of system and network integration, IT solutions
development and implementation, and related maintenance

services;

(b) the application services segment engages in the provision
of enterprise software applications and related operation
outsourcing, business process outsourcing and e-business,

and related maintenance services; and

(c) the investments segment primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and treasury investment in
listed and unlisted securities and held-to-maturity securities

for dividend income and interest income.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss),
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that unallocated interest income, unallocated
other income and gains, net, corporate and other unallocated
depreciation, corporate and other unallocated expenses, and

finance costs are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are

managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instruments, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office
and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group

basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during

the current and prior years.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(a)

4. BEIHEHA)

Operating segments (a) KEH
Group AEH
Integration and
Solutions Services Application Services Investments
L0 S VES S AR RE
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010
“2-2F TNE ZB-3F _ITNF <-B-Bf £ ZB-BFf _ITNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhL T TAT FHT Fhx T AL Thr
Segment revenue: AHHBA
Sales to external customers HETIRER 257,302 335,901 79,796 62,488 1,753 1,623 338,851*  400,012*
Other income and gains, net HiWARREFE 1,090 220 864 1,166 2,933 (599) 48877 787A
Total st 258,392 336,121 80,660 63,654 4,686 1,024 343,738 400,799
Segment results &S 29,329 38,056 26,726 21,084 13,758 7,647 69,813 66,787
Reconciliation: i
Unallocated interest income RAOBHERA 30770 2,036*
Unallocated other income and gains, net KA BREMKAR
WaFe 1887 A
Corporate and other unallocated depreciation % R E itk A AT E (312) (288)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses ¥ REM KA EREX (17,020) (17,744)
Finance costs HBER (39) -
Profit before tax BR AR 55,107 50,791
Segment assets AHEE 102,257 77852 34,073 30,79 52,145 50,598 188,475 159,246
Reconciliation: #
Corporate and other unallocated assets CEREMAIREE 321,107 300,654
Total assets BEBE 515,582 459,900
Segment liabilities AREE 71,840 70,015 29,721 23610 533 467 102,100 94,092
Reconciliation: i
Corporate and other unallocated liabiities ¥ REM KA EEE 43,774 14,79
Total liabilities BfEE 145,874 108,388

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HK$338,851,000 (2009:
HK$400,012,000) in the consolidated income statement.

A These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, net, of
HK$8,152,000 (2009: HK$2,823,000) in the consolidated income
statement.

NBRAREEARA A

* ERERE REE 2 K6 WA 338,851,000
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N BREAERESERAZEMEKRARK
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued)
Group

Integration and
Solutions Services
SRRBATERE
2009

2010
=
HK$'000
T

Other segment information: HipAHER
Net fair value gains on investment properties 1% & %1% A TFENSFE - -
Net fair value gains on financial assets at ~ RATFELBSENRZHH

fair value through profit or loss AEATERRFE - =

Depreciation &
Corporate and other unallocated depreciation {% R 2t A HEATE

1,222 1423

EHEAFRLER
WA/ (R 8

Other material non-cash income/(expense)

items, net* 2,960 (1,277)
BARX 254
PEREMADE

BRREX

Capital expenditure** 1372
Corporate and other unallocated

capital expenditure

* Including impairment losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement attributable to the integration and solutions services segment, the
application services segment and investments segment of HK$Nil (2009:
HK$6,507,000), HK$296,000 (2009: HK$420,000) and HK$600,000
(2009: HK$NIl), respectively, and impairment losses reversed in the
consolidated income statement attributable to the integration and solutions
services segment and the application services segment of HK$2,960,000
(2009: HK$5,230,000) and HK$112,000 (2009: HK$1,213,000),
respectively.

** Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010  Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

Application Services
ERRHE

2010 2009

£ -2-8F _ITNF

HK$'000
TR

HK$000
THET

41 511
(184) 793
465 496

rEE
Investments
RE
2010 2009 2010
“g-gr “ITINF SRR £
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TAL
7,440 2,836 7,440 2,836
615 4272 615 4272
181 239 1,880 2173
312 288
2,192 2461
(600) - 2,176 (484)
- 54 n9 1,922
140 183
859 2,110
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4. REDFBER (M)
(b)  Geographical information (h) HEER
Group AEE
()  Revenue from external customers () XREIREFZWA

Hong Kong Mainland China Consolidated
Bt HERL e

2010 2009 2010 2009
ce-%5  CIIAF SR-BF  SIIAF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
THL  TAT  TER AR

2010
—E-%F
HK$'000
TER

2009
)2
HK$'000
THL

Sales to external customers  $4& FANRE P 141,436 136,166 197,415 263,846 338,851 400,012
The revenue information is based on the location of WAER T AR F e A
the customers. HAE o

(i)  Non-current assets (i) FRBEE

2010 2009

—E-FF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F&T FET

Hong Kong E8 56,885 48,440
Mainland China [ A 4t 8,855 16,377
65,740 64,817

The non-current asset information is based on the
location of assets and excludes financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.

(c) Information about major customers
Revenues from external customers individually amounting to
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue:

For the year ended 31 December 2010, revenues from two
major customers of HK$41,857,000 and HK$41,795,000,
individually amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue, were derived from the integration and solutions
services segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, revenues from two
major customers of HK$162,490,000 and HK$43,778,000,
individually amounting to 10% or more of the Group’s total
revenue, were derived from the integration and solutions
services segment.

HSERBEEERTIIRE
EFREMES] - B IW ARt
rMBTAERELEREAE
E o

(c) EEEFZEH
K5 5} EB BB P 2 A 73 Bl ey
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
aggregate of the invoiced value of goods sold, net of trade
discounts, returns and business tax, where applicable; fees earned
from the provision of system and network integration, IT solutions,
enterprise software applications, business process outsourcing,
e-business and related services; fees earned from the provision of
maintenance services; gross rental income earned from investment
properties; and interest income earned from treasury investments
during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net, is as follows:

WA - E AU AR s R

WA (TR AR ERE 2 & X 88) 15 F M55
EEMIBRREERENRESTN R
EREFH(NER) - RERGRBE
SRS - BRBKBRT R - BEH
R - EHREINH - ETES LM
FAREHRRZER © RERBEREIR
RZBR  REVMERRZ B WAL
B AEBEBRE R SWA -

WA~ EARA RS F BT T -

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Revenue ON
Sale of computer networks and system platforms, $4EBISMPE R ZHEE S -
and the provision of system and network IR B M A8 S AR TS
integration, IT solutions development and BRI RRA S EEREN
implementation, and related maintenance B A M AB R IRE RS
services 257,302 335,901
Provision of enterprise software applications and 12t {> & E R RIBE S E
related operation outsourcing, business process SN#| « EFEEIZINH R EF
outsourcing and e-business, and related BER - LLRIEERRE
maintenance services AR 7 79,796 62,488
Gross rental income from investment properties % &%) BEL 2 H S WA K&
and interest income from treasury investments  EEF§1% & 2 F| S UL A 42 (E 1,753 1,623
338,851 400,012
Other income and gains, net HW AR W a=FEE
Bank interest income RITHEUA 3,077 2,036
Other interest income H S U A 30 30
Dividend income from listed and unlisted ERIELETRE ZREWA
investments 435 327
Gain/(loss) on disposal of financial assets at HERAFAEKLEBRZARZ
fair value through profit or loss BB E W (EE) 271 (1,906)
Gain on disposal of items of properties, HEWE MENLREEB
plant and equipment Z W= 1,465 =
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments H & a] {t &5 & ~ Uk 25
(transfer from equity on disposal) (PSR a#ES - 28
Foreign exchange differences, net b N =R R 1,249 124
Others HAmh 1,619 2,184
8,152 2,823
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B 73R4 M (48)
31 December 2010 —E—ZTF+_-_A=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold BEHEFERA
Cost of services provided REREAA
Depreciation* mE"
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property,  H&%% - BE R

plant and equipment HEEE 2 BB, ()
Minimum lease payments under operating RBEEHER T

leases in respect of land and buildings MEFREMZHIE

ik el

Auditors’ remuneration ZEE €

Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’ {& B @ 1|5z (T B1E

remuneration — note 8)*:

EME—ME8)*

Wages, salaries and allowances I& - #Ha 2R

Equity-settled share-based payment PR i 4 AR (D1 3%
expense X

Retirement benefit scheme contributions BT u+2|”/
(defined contribution schemes) (FE M2 D

Less: Forfeited contributions*#

Net retirement benefit scheme
contributions

R U R

RIRERIET SIS

Impairment of trade receivables** JEU E 5 R RRE **

Impairment of prepayments, deposits and BIE - Re REAM
other receivables JE LR IE R (B

Impairment of amounts due from contract ERANEERIBERE
customers**

Reversal of impairment of trade receivables** #[El fE ki & 5 85 ZUR E **

Reversal of trade receivables written off** B fEULE 5 BR T es *

Reversal of impairment of amounts due from  #[EIfEl & 4% F I8
contract customers** BB **

Direct operating expenses (including repairs ~ AJBENVE S 2 IR E ) E
and maintenance) arising on rental-earning = EELLHY (BIF
investment properties HIERIRE)

Fair value losses/(gains), net:

DNFERE,/ (W) F5

Financial assets at fair value through BAFELBEARZ
profit or loss MEEE
Derivative financial instruments — PTEMBITA
transactions not qualifying as hedges - NEBREHR S
Investment properties BB
Rental income on investment properties less & MER WA EE
direct operating expenses of HK$234,000 Q&R 234,000 7T
(2009: HK$260,000) (ZEZNF -
260,000757T)

* Depreciation for the year of HK$590,000 (2009: HK$598,000) is included in
“Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated income statement.

*x These items are included in “Other expenses, net” on the face of the

consolidated income statement.

& Inclusive of an amount of HK$37,045,000 (2009: HK$37,426,000) classified

under “Cost of services provided” above.

G The amounts of forfeited contributions available to reduce the Group’s
contributions to the retirement benefit schemes in future years were not

material as at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

AL BEADEFEMGR GEA) T
Bl I8 -

14

22
23

24
22

24

15

*k

RS

2009
—EENF
HK$'000
T T

—g—%

HK$'000
FEx
188,106

37,045 37.426
2,192 2461
(1,465) 11
4,607 4,765
1,068 1,000
80,304 79,973
969 442
4,784 4,472
27) 78)
4,757 4,394
86,030 84,809
296 3492
600 -
- 3,435
(2,508) 3)
(52) 42)
(565) (6,440)
234 260
(615) 4,272)
202 -
(7,440) (2,836)
(1,217) (1,175)
A 4 (8 47 B500,0008 7L~ FEAE
%98000%77:)%)\‘7’:.\451 SRZ[HERA]
R AR R 2 X AR
BESEA [ RERBRA] 2 B8
37, 45000/%75(_23714@ 37,426,000
H) .
R-F—FER-TENGE+-A=+—
N P L SR 2y
HEIE R SRR B A B A -
GEEERAT —B-BEER
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) i35 3R & MizE (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS 1. B%ER
2010 2009
—g-8F —TThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable HARAFANBEEREZ
within five years RITEFZFIE 39 -
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEMe
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to Section FRNEEMMERIETERTEAFIE 161
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules BEREBHAERIMERARES LM
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong MAN(T LR ) HEAT

Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), is as follows:

Fees: wE -
Executive directors HITEE
Independent non-executive directors BYIEHITES

Other emoluments: HAnp < -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R MEYR S
Bonuses* B>
Equity-settled share-based payment expense’ A% #E 44 & DA R0 1~ X BA =% #
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFIFT I

(defined contribution scheme) (35 EMH TS
* Certain directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which are *

determined by the board of directors on a discretionary basis.

# During the year and in prior years, certain directors were awarded restricted @

shares of the Company, subject to certain vesting conditions, in respect of
their services to the Group, under the restricted share award scheme of
the Company, further details of which are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such restricted shares, which has been
recognised in the income statement over the vesting period, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for
the current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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Group
rEE
2010 2009

—g-8F —2TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T T

450 450
450 450
4,860 4,740
1,572 944
268 290
36 36
6,736 6,010
7,186 6,460

ETARRESARERHESIMEE
JEZAEALINAR

RAFERBEFE  REARTDZER
HAR D SR AT B NETRBIREZAR
T ETEFERRERAKEMEHR
BREARABRGIRD - ARE—FF
EHN IS REM 33 - ZSH R HIRHD
MAFEDREL RHER YEREB
HNER SRR - Mt ARFEE TR
EZERNEEER EXEEZHERENR



Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B 73R4 MfsE (48)
31 December 2010 —E—ZF+=-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EEM=£ (&)
(a) Independent non-executive directors @) BIYFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FR INFBIERNTESE
the year were as follows: WEINTE -
Fees
e
2010 2009
—E-2F T NRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Independent non-executive directors: B IFRITEE -
Ha Shu Tong Bfix 150 150
Lee Kwok On, Matthew ey 150 150
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE 150 150
450 450
Save as disclosed above, there were no other emoluments B EXEEN  RAFE KB
payable to the independent non-executive directors during EFEENEEMEN T ELIEHN
the current and prior years. TEZEZHE -
(b) Executive directors () #HTES
The fees and other emoluments paid to executive directors FAXNTROTEEZ2BE R
during the year were as follows: HEemT :

Salaries, Equity-settled  Retirement

allowances share-based benefit
and benefits payment scheme Total
in Kind Bonuses expense contributions remuneration

e RERSE

AR HRHB  RKER
BRI A AXEX FEfR  HWERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR

2010 —E-FF

Executive directors: HITES
Ng Cheung Shing (“Mr. Ng")  REB([R%4£]) 2,874 762 134 12 3,782
Leung King San, Sunny 223 300 - - 12 312
Yan King Shun T8 1,686 810 134 12 2,642

4,860 1,572 268 36 6,736

NBEGEEERAT —2-TEER 85
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) i35 3R & MizE (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors (continued)

8.

EEME (&)

(b) HITESE ()

Salaries, Equity-settled Retirement
allowances share-hased benefit
and benefits payment scheme Total
in kind Bonuses expense contributions remuneration
e RELE
= 41957 PR 4n EIREF
BYFIE B4 e Bt MesE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TAT TAT TAT TAT
2009 “EZhE
Executive directors: HITES
Ng Cheung Shing REB 2,820 148 145 12 3,125
Leung King San, Sunny 225 300 - - 12 312
Yan King Shun T2 1,620 796 145 12 2,573
4,740 944 290 36 6,010
The directors’ emoluments paid to Mr. Ng included a INTREECEZSHEBER

housing allowance of HK$1,854,000 (2009: HK$1,800,000)
which is remunerated by way of rental reimbursement. The
rentals of the related property were paid directly by Mr. Ng
to the landlord, which is a company jointly controlled by Mr.
Ng and one of his family members.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the current and
prior years.
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201,854,000 T(Z T L5 :
1,800,000 7T ) 2 £ 5 = & -
UHESHEREZ AN - BREY
EZHERRTEEEINTE
T MEEZAZHEREERE
Hp—2HERERFRZEH 22

ﬁjo

MEXRERETMNE 2 2k -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bi783R 25 MisE (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-H=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2009: two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three
(2009: three) non-director, highest paid employees for the year are
as follows:

hEmEHNES

FR IEBREFHEERERE(Z
ZENF MBES REZMEHF
BER EXHFES - EB=5(ZFFh
F - ZR)RaFHFEEEEZH
HERENT

Group

rEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T

Salaries and allowances e KoER 3,315 2,711
Equity-settled share-based payment expense  R&HE 45 & AR < ZR B 2 216 239
Bonuses TE4T 566 5,338

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRERFT SR
(defined contribution schemes) (FEEERETED 76 107
4,173 8,395

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FHNFATERNZ RS HMIEESR
BZABWT :

Number of employees
EE A

2010 2009
—EENF

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 # 7T = 1,500,000 % 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 &L % 2,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 % 7T & 5,000,000 % 7T - 1

3 3

During the year and in prior years, restricted shares of the
Company, subject to certain vesting conditions, were awarded to
one non-director, highest paid employee in respect of his services
to the Group, under the restricted share award scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in note 33 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such restricted shares,
which has been recognised in the income statement over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current year
is included in the above non-director, highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

FARNBEFE  BREARFTZER
HIAR () EEEN T - A TRBIRITZ AR
RT > —2&aHIFEFREECIEN
AR B AR AR IR AN 2 R A BRI AX
o E—FHBFENYBREMESS -
ZEBRBIIMD 2 A FETIRE L B H
BF > YERGFBHNERGaRER

Mt AR FEEMBRE 2 BN EHE
REXESHIFESEREMSTER -

NERRASEEERAR —FT-—FFFH

87



88

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) i35 3R & MizE (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

10. INCOME TAX 10.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

1851

FEEMNBRIBEBEAFARETEELE L
R ERPUENIRH K 165% (—FF
NLF 1 16.5%) i it - H b= /&
AR M 2 IR T IR B AN SR B R 75
FREBR,BERR 2 BRATEAE -

2010 2009
—®-®F —TINF

HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TAT

Group: REH :
Current — Hong Kong BIHA — B8
Charge for the year FAMIBZ N
Overprovision in prior years FFELREE
Current — Elsewhere BIHA — E fibih[&
Charge for the year FRPREL H
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years FEEDIERE
(IR
Deferred (note 30) HEIE (FH7E30)
Total tax charge for the year FAMIB HAE
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3,088 2,157
(46) (260)
1,799 1,969
20 (652)
1,789 3,694
6,650 6,908




Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bi783R 25 MisE (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-H=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory profits tax rate for Hong Kong in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are operating/domiciled to the
tax charge at the effective tax rate is as follows:

10.

Fri&®t (/&)

ERRBRARBRERE D B QB
2/ EE 2R MEH KA ER
BERBANGEM 2 A - IR B
KA BEZBBEHBRET ¢

Group NEEF
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Profit before tax B 75 BT 45 ) 55,707 50,791
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate of REBEEME16.5%
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) (ZZZNF : 165%)
HE A 9,192 8,381
Higher tax rates for overseas subsidiaries BINGTB R BB = R 645 773
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BT FERNAATI IR
previous periods {EL AR (26) (912)
Effect of withholding tax on the declared REEPRHE AR
dividend of a subsidiary of the Group itz —REHB AR
registered in the People’s Republic of China B & RIZBTEMNF 2 2 - 341
Income not subject to tax BRRHUA (866) (1,405)
Expenses not deductible for tax AN 678 2,156
Tax losses utilised from previous periods A @ HAR 2 BiIEEE (2,645) (3,329)
Others Hib (328) 903
Tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate  ~ ANEBZERMERAE 2 HESZ L 6,650 6,908

Under the income tax laws of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), enterprises are subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”)
generally at a rate of 25% (2009: 25%). However, certain of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries are operating in specific development
zones of the PRC and the relevant tax authorities have granted
those subsidiaries a preferential CIT rate of 22% (2009: 20%).

One of the Company’s subsidiaries is a foreign investment
enterprise registered in the PRC. After obtaining authorisation
from the relevant tax authority, the subsidiary is subject to a full
corporate income tax exemption for the first two years and a 50%
reduction in the succeeding three years, commencing from the
first profitable year (starting from the year ended 31 December
2005).

BREFEARKMBE(HE]) AEHR
% BERAED (ZEENEF
25%) Z RGN RGN ([EEM
B - AW AEEETHEHRER
AETFEFERERALEER  RE
BARGHEACHEZSHBRRRE
BEEMERRE2%(ZETNEF:
20% ) BIHR °

ARRATEHB—EHE AR ARF T
ZHNEERELE - MEEBEMBGHKER
1% ZBAR B B EENFEREG
(BEZEZ-_ZTRF+-_A=+—H1t
FER) JEZEEMEZ2ELEM
BHRERREEE=F50% 2 HRER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B8 3R MisE (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

11.

12.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT 11.

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent for
the year ended 31 December 2010 includes a loss of HK$12,000
(2009: a loss of HK$17,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 34(b)).

DIVIDENDS

Interim — HK$0.06 (2009: HK$0.04)
per ordinary share
Less: Dividend for shares held under
the Company’s restricted share
award scheme

Proposed final — HK$0.06 (2009: HK$0.04)

per ordinary share

Less: Dividend for shares held under
the Company'’s restricted share
award scheme

Proposed special — Nil (2009: HK$0.02)
per ordinary share
Less: Dividend for shares held under
the Company’s restricted share
award scheme

12.

ISYNGIE, 2PN Sy -]

HE-_ZE—ZTF+_-_A=1+—HILF
B BRBHEEAEBGREEZMNEE
E5i812,0008 T(Z T N F: FHi8
17,0007 7T) * ERA QR B B RE T
& (Mf3E34(b)) °

3=\

2010
—B-FF

2009
—EENF
HK$'000
FHETT

HK$'000
FTERT

PRS- BACE @A 0.06

BIT(ZZETNF : 0.04E7T) 15,164 10,101
W+ REARR AR
SR BI A 2 R
FSRLE (356) (185)
14,808 9,916
FORABI S - LB
00687 (ZBENF :
0.0487T) 15,164 10,109
W+ REARRTERABRS
SEmEH B 2 IR
FriS RS (356) (185)
14,808 9,924
RORN RIS - SREERE
BT (ZZThF : 0.02#87T) - 5,054
W REARTERABRS
SIS 2 IR
FriBRe. - (92)
- 4,962
29,616 24,802

The proposed dividends for the year are subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bi783R 25 MisE (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-H=+—H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
246,649,080 (2009: 247,491,223) in issue during the year, as
adjusted to exclude the shares held under the restricted share

award scheme of the Company.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares granted under
the share option schemes of the Company and the deemed vesting
of all dilutive restricted shares of the Company awarded under
the restricted share award scheme of the Company into ordinary

shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based

on:

Earnings

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based

on profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

Shares B3
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year used in the basic

earnings per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average number
of ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under the
Company’s restricted share award
scheme

13.

BRAAEERKRREGEREF

BREABNSEIREF AR EER
BERBIEFREN R FADEITERR
DNHE 15 £7246,649,080 1R (=T N,
F: 247,491,223/ )t & - B EH #
B LSRR RA RS ZEhat &
ARG

BREBERENSEIREE AR ER
BBRREGEERENGE - SHEMAZ
BB IEFHBRERELRRN A
ZFEADETEBRRHEE - RMRERVMA
BRBEARRBEE IR L 2 BEE
SBERREESEITESLME - UK
AR AIRBAR RHE R HIA A 2B =t &
B2 A AL HE R R A IR I D 1R
1EER B A EAR B E 5 BT 2 EmA AN
ERDaE

BIREAR LEHR BN THIRIA T BURE
27
BREANEERBN DG AR ER
BB REERMFTE -

Number of shares

RIDEE

2010
—B-FF

HEEREARFFAERN

BERITE AR

BERE - LTREIETOH

RIBEAR R R)A R B 2R
Bl 2 BRI

246,649,080 247,491,223

3,955,767 3,296,038

250,604,847 250,787,261
MEZGEERRAT —Z—2FFRK
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bi#&3R&EMsE (&)

31 December 2010 —E—FF+=-A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

14. Y% - MERRHE

31 December 2010 “E-ZEtZR=1-H
At 31 December 2009 and W-EZNE+-R=1-H
at 1 January 2010: RZT-SF-f-H:

Cost R
Accumulated depreciation ZiHhE
Net carrying amount FE3E

At 1 January 2010, net of

R-T-ZE-H-H-

accumulated depreciation NBRZHNE
Additions RE
Disposals e
Write-off i

Depreciation provided during the year & M3 £ 5/

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2010, net of

accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2010: RZE-SFE+ZA=+-R:
Cost A
Accumulated depreciation ZitE
Net carrying amount REFE

31 December 2009 “EEAETZR=1-H

At 1 January 2009: RZEENF-A-A:
Cost A
Accumulated depreciation 2ihE
Net carrying amount EE3E

At 1 January 2009, net of

EXAE

RZZ-FF+-A=+-A"

MEZHHE

RZEENE-A-H"

accumulated depreciation NBZHNE
Additions RE
Disposals e

Depreciation provided during the year ER#TER

At 31 December 2009, net of

accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2009: REZENET-A=1T-H:
Cost AR
Accumulated depreciation ZitE
Net carrying amount REFE

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

RIBENET-A=T-R-

MEREHE

AEHE
Furniture,
Leasehold Computer fixtures
land and Leasehold equipment and other Motor

buildings improvements  and software equipment vehicles Total

BELH HE  EMRE GR %E
kEFR  NEREE Re#  REMRE "E CHI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAT TAT TAT TAT TATL
7,652 2,221 23,702 2,315 2,210 38,160
(1,011) (2,062) (21,333) (1,985) (502) (26,893)
6,641 159 2,369 330 1,768 11,267
6,641 159 2,369 330 1,768 11,267
- 60 740 59 - 859
(2,305) - - - - (2,305)
- (9) 2 M - (12)
(149) (121) (1,469) (93) (360) (2,192)
- 1 6 1 24 32
4,187 90 1,644 296 1,432 7,649
4710 2,280 21,111 1,435 2,300 32,502
(523) (2,190) (20,133) (1,139) (868) (24,853)
4,187 90 1,644 296 1,432 7,649
7,652 2,157 28,858 2,406 2,233 43,306
(806) (1,918) (26,529) (1,939) (391) (31,583)
6,846 239 2,329 467 1,842 11,723
6,846 239 2,329 467 1,842 11,723
- 64 1,59 64 383 2,110
_ - = - (105) (105)
(205) (144) (1,569) (201) (362) (2,461)
6,641 159 2,369 330 1,768 11,267
7,652 2,221 23,702 2315 2,270 38160
(1,011) (2,062) (21,333) (1,985) (602) (26,893)
6,641 159 2,369 330 1,768 11,267

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited



Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B 73R4 MfsE (48)

31 December 2010 —E—ZF+=-A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

15.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are held under the

following lease terms:

Hong Kong:
Medium term leases

Mainland China:
Medium term leases
Long term leases

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Group

Carrying amount at 1 January

Disposal

Net profit from a fair value adjustment

Carrying amount at 31 December

BB
hHIEE

RE A
RHMEE
RHHEE

R—A—BAZEHE
&
R EFB AR

14. Y% - BEKRE (&)

15.

Rt-—A=t—BZKEE

AEBZHE T REFIIREBEATHE

EEEEE -
2010 2009
—g-%F —2INF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR Fis
387 403
- 2,345
3,800 3,893
3,800 6,238
4,187 6,641

BREM=
AW
2010 2009
—g-8F —TThA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH7 FHT
27,737 24,901
(2,899) =
6 7,440 2,836
32,278 27,737
MEZGEEERAE —Z2-ZFFFH
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B8 3R MisE (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. REWE (&)

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and are held under the following lease terms:

AEBUNFERTEABZREYE
TIREATHEFHRHA

94

2010 2{0[0°)
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Hong Kong: BE

Medium term leases R E 4,560 3,420
Long term leases RHEE 24,000 18,500
28,560 21,920

Mainland China: AR A
Medium term leases FRHATEE 1,950 4,257
Long term leases RHEHEE 1,768 1,560
3,718 5,817
32,278 27,737

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2010 by Landscope Surveyors Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at HK$32,278,000 on an open market, existing
use basis. The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 35(a) to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2010, one of the Group’s investment properties
situated in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately
HK$24,000,000 (2009: HK$18,500,000) was pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are
included on page 142.
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16. GOODWILL

Group

16. BHE

AEE

HK$'000
TET

31 December 2009

—EEAF+ZA=1—H

Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2009 RZZBTENF—A—ARZZTNF

and 31 December 2009

TZA=T—BZEAREEE 25,813

HK$’000
FERT

31 December 2010

Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2010
and 31 December 2010

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements,
the Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that
permitted goodwill in respect of business combinations which
occurred prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against consolidated

reserves.

The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, arising
from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP
30 in 2001, was HK$7,227,000 as at 31 December 2009 and
2010. The amount of goodwill is stated at its cost less cumulative

impairment of HK$3,890,000.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been
allocated to the following cash-generating units, which are

reportable segments, for impairment testing:

e Application services cash-generating unit; and
e |ntegration and solutions services cash-generating unit.

—F-FFt=A=t+-8

R-E—ZF—HF—HE-_Z—ZF
+ - BA=1t—HZHRANMEEE 25,813

MM SR E MR 2. A PR EFA - AEE
ERBEBY RS ELE IR ZBE
KR - BN T —FHIMELER
MEBAMcABEBERRAREY
B e

R-EE-—FRMNSAEBHEREI0
S5 AT UG B B B 8 R P EE A AR BB IR AR
BREZBESE R-TTNAFR-
Z-ZEF+ZA=+—H~KR7,227,000
BT BESBRKAR R RE
3,890,000/ T 18 AR °

B R E R
SUREARME - BRAXHEHEEL
BEENRETIRESELEM (BRI

S ) -

ERRBHESELEN &
s SRERBRITERBGREELE

fiz o

MEZGEERRAT —Z—2FFRK
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16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-

generating units is follows:

Application Services

JE R R %

2010 2009
—§-%F —ITNE
HK$'000  HK$'000
THAL  TER

Carrying amount of goodwill BEREE 23,790 23,790

16. BE (&)

EmEREENH ()
PEESRESEESBU 2 EREEDN
T

Integration and

Solutions Services Total

SRRBRERRH Bt
2010 2009 2010 2009
“Z-BF TN —E-Bf ZTTNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T TET THT
2,023 2,023 25,813 25,813

Application services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the application services cash-
generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections approved by senior
management covering a five-year period and extrapolated with a
zero percentage growth rate. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 10% (2009: 10%) and the cash flow projections
are determined based on past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

Integration and solutions services cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the integration and solutions services
cash-generating unit has also been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections approved by senior
management covering a five-year period and extrapolated with a
zero percentage growth rate. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 10% (2009: 10%) and the cash flow projections
are determined based on past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of
the application services and integration and solutions services
cash-generating units for 31 December 2010 and 31 December
2009. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted revenue — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted revenue is the revenue achieved
in the year immediately before the budget year, adjusting for
management’s expected change in market demand and customer
base.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant cash-generating units.
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS . Hih B\ EE
Group AEM
Deferred
development
costs
JEFE B B R AN
HK$'000
T
31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 —E2-ZEF+=-A=+—H
R—ZZhF+=-HA=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009, RZZFZENGF—H—H ZTNF
1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010, net of +=—A=+—H8 -—F—ZFF—HF—H
accumulated amortisation and impairment FE=E—ZFF+_A=F+—HZKRK
(FBx REHEE S RORER) =
At 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009: R-_ZE—ZF+_A=+—H
;ZZEZNF+_HA=1+—H
Cost BN 13,026
Accumulated amortisation and impairment RETE# I RRE (13,026)
Net carrying amount REVFE -

18.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

RBBARZIRE

Company
AAF]
2010 2009

—g-8F —2TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T Fis

Unlisted investments, at cost JEEHRE - WA 45,633 45,633
Due from subsidiaries A= NGI O] 266,964 298,752
312,597 344,385
Impairment* YA * (91,643) (91,643)
220,954 252,742

An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted investments/amounts due
from subsidiaries in prior years because the recoverable amounts of these
investments/amounts due from subsidiaries were lower than their carrying
amounts. There was no change in the impairment account during the current
and prior years.

The amounts due from subsidiaries included in the Company’s
investments in subsidiaries above are unsecured, interest-free and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

* RBEFE  ARZERE KK ERR
IR Z AR B BEERNEREE  REH®
BT LTIRE /UK E A R HORER
WA BERERFARBEFEYEE
# o

L‘AJ:E+)\$“ﬂ75’\MTJ§’“=H§E;§ZF§H&

Fﬁ% FIBREER 28 RIEE
EA,HH

NERRASEEERAR —FT-—FFFH
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Apex Result Trading Limited
KEEHERAA

Apex Consulting Services Limited

Computer And Technologies
(BVI) Limited

Computer And Technologies
International Limited

HBARARAE

Computer And Technologies
Integration Limited
BB SR AR A

Computer & Technologies

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

A
AR EEnH

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands

RERIES

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

PRC/Mainland China

International Trading (Shanghai) & &,/ B A1,

Company Limited*
NBZGERTE/BERES
(L&) BRAR

Computer & Technologies
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.#
FRMBESRRER AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

PRC/Mainland China
RE/FREN,

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRITRE/
&R 2 H{E

Ordinary HK$2
L@k 28T

Ordinary
HK$2,500,000
TR
2,500,000/ 7T

Ordinary
US$1,000
LA 1,000 T

Ordinary HK$2
Non-voting
deferred**
HK$5,000,000
LTRR2AT
BREERITR
5,000,000/ 7T

Ordinary HK$2
LEk2BT

US$200,000

200,000 7T

US$3,500,000
3,500,000% 7T

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

18. RKTE AR 2RE (&)

TEMBRARZHBNT

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
KA RIEMERAE
BEAAL
2010 2009
S
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

TEER

Property holding
RENE

Provision of human resources
management and product
development services

REANEREER
EmRERS

Investment holding

REEK

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services,
investment holding and
treasury

REEABRBATR
BERRERRY -
REERREBRE

Provision of system and network
integration services

RUAG LB R RE

Trading of computer networks
and system platforms
ERBERERTRES

Provision of system and network
integration services

REZGRBE RS
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Computer & Technologies
Investment Limited

C&T (Guangzhou) Investment
Limited
B (BM)RBEERAA

C&T (Hong Kong) Investment
Limited
B (BB REERAH

C&T (Nanjing) Investment Limited
B (BR)REERAT

C&T (Shanghai) Investment
Limited
M (8 RBERAA

Computer And Technologies
Solutions Limited

HBEHERAR

Computer & Technologies
Solutions (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.#*

RB& s ORI ERDR*

Global e-Business Services (BVI)
Limited

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRIRE/
HEMERZHE

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

A
SR EELY

British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1
Hong Kong EER1ET
EBRIHE/BE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
B L2
British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$1
Hong Kong TER1ET
EBRIHE/BE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
95 L@k2BT
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
B L2
Hong Kong Ordinary
) HK$10,000
L3EA% 10,0008 T
PRC/ Mainland China US$1,128,000
R/ E R 1,128,000 % 7T
British Virgin Islands ~ Class A US$1,600
BEELES Class B US$400
A$81,600% T
B4E400%TT

18. RKTBA R 2RE (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
AN REERA
BZEAH
2010 2009
S
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

NBRAREEARA A

Principal activities

FEER

Investment holding and treasury
investments

REERREBKRE

Property holding
REME

Property holding
REME

Property holding
BEME

Property holding
REME

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services

RESAMRBANRERR
Btk

Provision of IT solutions
development and
implementation services

REZARRBATRER
REMHMRS

Investment holding

REEKR
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Global e-Business Services
Limited
ERETHEREERAR

Global e-Trading Services Limited
BESREERLDA

e-tendering.com Limited

ets.com.hk Limited

IPL Research Limited

Modern Lucky Investments
Limited
HEREBRAA

Waywin Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

H A
SR EE LY

Hong Kong
&R

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
ERRLEE/BE

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RBRIBS /B

Nominal value

of issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRE
HAMER2EE

Ordinary
HK$1,010,000
£k
1,010,000/ 7T

Ordinary
HK$2,501,000
BB
2,501,000/ 7T

Ordinary US$1
TER1ET

Ordinary HK$2
LB 2B T

Ordinary HK$100
Non-voting deferred**
HK$300,000
LA 10078
BRFERER
300,000/ 7T

Ordinary HK$2
L@R2ET

Ordinary
US$10,000
LiEk
10,000%7T

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

18. RKTE AR 2RE (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
KRN RIEMERA
BZEAL

2010
—2-%%

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

2009
“ETNE
100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Principal activities

TEER

Provision of enterprise software
applications services

R ERAEARY

Provision of e-business
related services, including
government electronic
trading services

RUESTEIHBRE
BAEBNETESR%

Provision of e-tendering services

RUETRERS

Provision of e-tendering services
for the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region
(“HKSAR”) Government

MEBEATHE ([EERE
&) BRI E TR R

Provision of enterprise software
applications and related
operation outsourcing
services

RECXTHEAR
TR 2 E I IR

Property holding
REME

Investment holding

REEKR
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18. RIBARZ&KRE (&)
Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued Percentage of equity
registration share capital/ attributable to
and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
MR,/ BRITRE/ AAFEMGERA
MR EEh HAMEARZEE BZEA TEXK
2010 2009
ZE-2F —ETNE
Y&A Professional Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 99.993 99.993  Provision of IT solutions
B HK$2,169,000 development and
LRk implementation services
2,169,000/ 7T RUEBARBRATRERK
Bk
LEBEREERARM PRC/Mainland China Ordinary 100 100 Provision of enterprise software
B/ E R US$450,000 applications and related
Lk operation outsourcing
450,000% 7T services
RECERHERAK
1RR = EIN IR
& The subsidiary is registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture under PRC 3 ZH B AR DIRES EAEEMAFINE
law. B
# The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under & ZEMB AR DRE S EEEEM A
PRC law. BEDE -

*

o ZEWFRAREFECEREEECR

The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry no

rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general DEZARRREZET  TEEEZS
meeting. In the winding-up of the subsidiaries, the holders of the deferred WEEAKRRERAeBENEEREAS K
shares carry the rights to receive a return of capital after the holders of the R LR ZER - WHBAREE - BT
ordinary shares have received a sum of HK$1,000,000,000 per ordinary BRIFBEABRREBRFTEARSRYE
share. 38 A% W EL 4 ££1,000,000,000/8 014 + 1A%
Except for Computer And Technologies (BVI) Limited, all of the f Computer And Technologies (BVI)
above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. Limited ) + _E#iFTEKTB AR BRAR
ETF'EIEJT%*%E °
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in FTREFNEEERASHAREBFRNE
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for BEREIESE BRAEEREETE
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the EAADHEAEBBIITEER 24X
Group or of particular importance to the Group. To give details of NRIMBAR - EERAFINEMH B
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in NAIZERESRERBAILE °

particulars of excessive length.
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19. HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES 19. FZ22HES
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—g-%F —TThE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FAT
At amortised cost: bive: 1| BN
Unlisted debt securities JELMES - 498
Portion classified as current assets SERENEE 2 BB - (498)
Non-current portion ERBE D - -
20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 20. AIHLERE
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Club membership debenture, at fair value e@fefsEs  BATE 1,850 1,650
During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group’s available- FRN - REMEEHRAER 2 AEE ]
for-sale investment recognised in other comprehensive income SR E L AT E 200,000 T (=
amounted to HK$200,000 (2009: gross gain of HK$178,000), TEANF: LAEF 1780008 7L) @ H
of which none (2009: HK$28,000) was reclassified from other REETT(ZZEZNE : 28,000/87T)E
comprehensive income to the income statement for the year. REANBEMEEBAEZT > EE =
% o
The fair value of the club membership debenture is based on EEEBEHFC AFETIAAERETE
available market prices. ATE -
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21.

INVENTORIES

ERm

Work in progress

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade and bills receivables
Impairment

For system integration projects and the provision of maintenance
services and software development services, the Group’s trading
terms with its customers vary from contract to contract or
depending on the specific arrangements with individual customers,
and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and on
credit. For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit
period is generally within 120 days, except for certain projects
with longer implementation schedules where the period may
extend beyond 120 days, or may be extended for major or specific
customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding trade receivables and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade and bills receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

21.

rE

Group

rEE
2010
—E-BF
HK$'000
THT
18,482

2009
—EENF
HK$'000
FH&T

5,289

22. RWEZRRKERREE

FEW B 5 R M B R IE
BB

NBRAREEARA A

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—¥-¥F —TThHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHAT
77,676 69,721
(3,235) (7,957)
74,441 61,764

TR FEAIE B A KRR E IR TS K 8K
HHRERBME @ AREZRERERE
EEMHENIRFENEPZIHER
HEMR - A BEREIINR - BAHKIA
MR - REURERTEAETREZE
B HEBREEH-—RBI20KRNUA -
HefwE TIRE ETHRE - AEEHA
ERZEBBI20K - AR EZHEE
BEPER - ARBE—EERBEHIERE
BRKE SRR MaREEE T EY
EH ARG BB IRALEEER
BYAEE

—2-2EEH
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the payment due date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

Current BIER

1 to 3 months —Z==@A
4 to 6 months mENEA
More than 6 months ~EA A E

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

22.

BWE SRR EREE (&)

AEBPRREPELEEARKE ZER
Ko FEUL = R 32 B B 50 B I AN B B4
ZERE DT ¢

Group

TEE
2010 2009
—¥-¥F —TThHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
57,900 43,326
12,213 16,883
2,811 1,087
1,517 468
74,441 61,764

FEW B Z BN RE R BE RN T

Group

rEH
2010 2009
—E-EF ZEThEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
At 1 January Rn—HA—AH 7,957 4,469
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) ERERBERE (H:E6) 296 3,492
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B EUREEBRE (M) (2,508) (3)
Amount written off as uncollectible 88 AT EU B & B (2,588) (1)
Exchange realignment b H Fa R 78 =
At 31 December Wt+=—A=+—8 3,235 7,957

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables
is a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
HK$3,235,000 (2009: HK$7,957,000) with a carrying amount
before provision of HK$3,235,000 (2009: HK$7,957,000).

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to amounts that
were long outstanding and/or customers that were in financial
difficulties/in default and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances.
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 22. EREZRFREWERE (&)
The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not AR EBEZEWNE SER M ERE
considered to be impaired is as follows: BZEREDMTOT ¢

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Neither past due nor impaired RignHR R R (E 43,962 41,278
Less than 1 month past due w E DR —1E A 19,246 15,641
1 to 3 months past due BAP—Z==1EA 6,905 3,290
4 to 6 months past due B EAP 2= S5 E A 2,811 1,087
Over 6 months past due B HAEE A <@ A 1,517 468
74,441 61,764
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a AR HA % SRR E < FE MRk TR 3 B A
number of diversified customers, including certain departments/ VEERGEHZZETIEAEFEH &
units of the Government of the HKSAR, for whom there was no RBEBFRIFSE T3P, BEAL -

recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a BEEERE EBRFIBEREER T
number of independent customers that have a good reputation R/ REAEBABRIFERCHEZE
and/or have a good track record with the Group. Based on past TEIUEFEM - REBAELR - AR
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no AIEERR ARNGEERTEEAE
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances 2 BZSESRNERRRESKE -
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and WBAMZFEMEL RERE - K%
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does B\l S AEaT A AR AR E
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these HEERHRE -

balances.
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23. FERRIE - RERHbEWEIE

Group Company
L PN

2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —TThEFE ZB-ZF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHTT FHExT FHTT
Prepayments TEfSFRIE 2,850 2,508 259 257
Deposits and other receivables 3% 4 N H fih fE Y 3018 6,826 2,855 - =
Impairment (note 6) EE (FizE6) (600) = - =
9,076 5,363 259 257

Included in the above provision for impairment of other receivables
is a provision for individually impaired other receivables of
HK$600,000 (2009: Nil) with a carrying amount before provision
of HK$2,697,000 (2009: Nil). Except to the impairment loss
recognised for the year of HK$600,000 (2009: Nil), there were
no other movements in the provision for impairment of other
receivables during the current and prior years. The impaired other
receivables relate to a portion of the receivables which is expected
not to be recovered.

The financial assets included in the above balances that were not

impaired relate to receivables for which there was no recent history
of default.

24. CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits

VA B A S R TR 2 R 1 B £ R 4R L BB
#RIBREE 42,697,000 87T (ZZ TN,
F T 2 AR E 2 H B RIR
e 2 B 600,000/ T (—TFNF :
F) o BRAFE C WERR (E£518 600,000
BT(ZETAF : ) AFEERB
EFEEEMBYIRE R ERFELER
&8 o 2Rl (EZ E YRR T B AR
D EMEER D 2 B FIRERE o

BRER L AR AA B R GRIR 2 RR
BN EER TN SR D8 -

24. REEHN

Group
AEE
2010 2009
ZETNF
HK$'000
THETT

—z-%%
HK$’000
FHT

ETEEEARNRANE R

less recognised losses to date MR B MR g A 334,811 308,660
Less: Progress billings B IREERLES (329,939) (304,022)
4,872 4,638

Gross amounts due from contract customers BUE MR P FIERE 13,228 12,484
Impairment B (5,698) (6,263)
7,530 6,221

Gross amounts due to contract customers ENAHB P ZIBLRAE (2,658) (1,583)
4,872 4,638
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24. CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES (CONTINUED) 24. R¥EE#H (&)
The movements in provision for impairment of amounts due from BUWAWEERERERE 2 EE W
contract customers are as follows: T -
Group
REE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 6,263 9,268
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) ERERBEEE (KiE6) - 3,435
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B e R EEE (FiiEe) (565) (6,440)
At 31 December R+—-_A=+—H 5,698 6,263
Included in the above provision for impairment of amounts LiiEWENEFFIBRERERIER
due from contract customers is a provision for individually BRTEIE /25,960,000 7T (ZEF 14 ¢
impaired contract receivable amounts of HK$5,698,000 (2009: 6,525,000 7T) Z A BB E I & 458
HK$6,263,000) with a carrying amount of HK$5,960,000 (2009: H{EH 2 B 5,698,000 T (2T 1,
HK$6,525,000). The individually impaired contract receivables F 1 6,263,00087T) ° {ERIE RIEE UK
relate to amounts that are long outstanding and the receivables are ABHFIBERBBARBAREERENIENRTERD
not expected to be fully recoverable. HETNRE 2 B Bl 2 FE U R IE SRS -
Amounts due from contract customers that were not impaired were W AR E 2 B A HE P RIEN KA
not past due and relate to a number of independent customers B WEEZMNEARNEERFR TN KRG
that have a good track record/relationship with the Group and/ 8, BAR R, SGR AN BB R AR B 2 0B
or for whom there was no recent history of default. Based on past VERFHR - BEBEBRELR  ARAE
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no REDERZELERIEL RERRE -
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances WIHRAEEE R EERNESE - A
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and R IDE R AR 2EURE - REEN
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does ERZEEHRFETMAEF R EAME
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these ERAHRE o
balances.
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR  25.
LOSS

BAVPECER ARZMBEE

Group
REE
2010 2009
—E—FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Non-current assets: EMBNEEE ¢
Listed debt investment, at market value EmEFE 2 EEBRE 847 861
Current assets: MBEE
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, BmETEZE®EE LT
at market value N 10,648 8,900
Listed debt investments, at market value EMEE 2 EFmEKKRE - 4,025
10,648 12,925
11,495 13,786

The listed debt investments were designated upon initial
recognition as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
they are managed and their performance are evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
and investment strategy, and information about the investments
are provided on that basis to the Group’s key management
personnel.

The listed equity investments included under current assets at 31
December 2009 and 2010 were classified as held for trading.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010  Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK 26. BeREFARCEEURCEHER

DEPOSITS RITER
Group Company
REE RAH
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F5 —TTHhF ZEB-ZTF —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET T FHET T
Cash and bank balances e NRITET 133,577 58,835 1,433 1,122
Time deposits TEHFH 191,484 241,047 - =
325,061 299,882 1,433 1,122
Less: Pledged time deposits for & : ftER1TIB LI1RZE
performance bonds/ ERFTER
guarantees issued by EHFER
banks (37,560) (11,829) - -
Cash and cash equivalents as s+ AB AR IRER 2
stated in the statement of ReFREZRBESEE
financial position 287,501 288,053 1,433 1,122

Less: Non-pledged time deposits J& : W EER R E|HI B
with original maturity of B=1{E Az EE
more than three months e BF R
when acquired (5,911) (9,257)

Cash and cash equivalents for st A4GZAIRERE
the purpose of the consolidated R4 RZRIRE
statement of cash flows BE

281,590 278,796

RBEMEEER  AEEUARK
TAR® DFHEZR & RRITEFRE
BATF 3} %94 209,530,000 B (=TT N,
152,997,000/ 7T) - AR B
BABRAEMER  BEREPEINEE
BRI N AEE - EERNEEERTE

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
and time deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) amounted to approximately HK$209,530,000 (2009:
HK$152,997,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and

Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one and six months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

REEEE AR B FPETINERH 2R
TTRARE LB REARINE -

RITRERIEE ARITERMRLRFE
MEFE - EHAERERNFZTHN T
—EXNEARE  BFAEEH AR
EHRRME - Wi AERE A2 HIE H 75 5F
KR - ROTEGRERERIFER
B8 R XA B B R AL 8% 2 IRTT -

MEZGEERRAT —Z—2FFRK
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27. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 2]. BNEZRMN  HttEAFIER
Pt RIE

Group Company
rEE AN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —TThEF ZE-ZTF —ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T FERT FHBT

Trade payables FERE SRR 56,370 54,051 - =
Other payables E T FRIE 25,573 18,456 - =
Accruals FEETFRIA 13,197 12,968 209 281
95,140 85,475 209 281
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBREHELEER - B E SREKIED
reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as follows: BN RA Z BREEDATIA T ¢
Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-=F —EThEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Current BNEA 52,914 50,432
1 to 3 months —ZE==EA 3,065 459
4 to 6 months m= 5@ A 258 1,503
Over 6 months NEA LA E 133 1,657
56,370 54,051
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally EREZERRTEE - —RIZ30KH
settled on 30-day terms. PRAES ©
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28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Liabilities 8f&
Forward currency contracts RHAONE S 4
Interest rate swaps ) 2 45 HA

The main purpose of the above contracts and swaps entered into
by the Group is to manage the Group’s exchange rate and interest
rate exposures. Such contracts and swaps did not meet the criteria
for hedge accounting.

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 29.
2010
=5
Contractual
interest
rate (%) Maturity
BHFIE (%) 38R
Current il
Bank loans - secured BIER-CHERA 1.10-1.23 2011
Analysed into: WA :
Bank loans repayable: EEERTER:
Within one year or on demand —FRFEER
(note a) (Pizta)

Notes:

(a) These bank loans contain a clause that gives the lender the unconditional
right to call the loans at any time and, accordingly, are classified as current
liabilities. Ignoring the repayment on demand clause and based on the
maturing terms of these loans, these loans are repayable within one year.

(b) These bank loans are denominated in United States dollars.
Pledge of assets

The Group’s bank loans and other banking facilities are secured by:

(i) certain of the Group’s time deposits amounting to HK$37,560,000 at 31
December 2010 (2009: HK$11,829,000); and

(i) an investment property of the Group with a carrying value of HK$24,000,000
as at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$18,500,000).

28.

NBRAREEARA A

PTERKEITA

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—TENF
HK$'000
FHT

—F-FF
HK$'000
TR

121 -
81 -

202 =

AEEIT TN FAK RSS2 A Y
BERAREEYZ EXEFREAR -
2 AN RBRATHAERRE 215
f o

MERITEE
2009
“ETNE
Contractual
NEEN
HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
TEr AHFE%) 38R TEL
26,520 - - -
26,520 -
BaE

(@) ZERTERBEETELASRGHERN
BERF AR T Z 153 - LD BARER
{8 - RIREREEZGSUAN - ERZEFE
RZEHE - ZEEFER - FAEE -

(b)  EERITEFAETE -

BEHREE
$§Ziﬁﬁg%l&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ%%ﬂﬁﬁaL‘A'F%IE
R

0) REEBR-ZZE—ZTF+-_A=1+—AZ%H
F 5 B 17 737,560,000 7T (= 2 A 4F :
11,829,000/ 7T) : &

(ii) AEBR=-ZZE—ZTF+=A=
T {& /424,000,000 T( = &
18,500,000/ 7T) 2 &M -

B

+-A
2N

—2-2EEH
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30. DEFERRED TAX 30. EELEBIIE

TR EERBRABREEZZEH

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows: T
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHEAE
Group REH

Revaluation
of properties
YIS
HK$’000
TFHExT

2010
—B-FF
Withholding
taxes
LIk
HK$'000
THEx

Total
At
HK$’000
TET

At 1 January 2010 R=-ZE—EF—H—H 1,813 496 2,309
Deferred tax charged to the FRRK R Z
income statement during the year* EIERLIA * 1,198 - 1,198
Deferred tax credited to equity upon ~ REEREWERTA
the disposal of an investment property A% ZN#E 25 2 #E (£ 78 (78) - (78)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at N-E—FF+_A8
31 December 2010 = t+—HZEERIEA
BERE 2,933 496 3,429

Revaluation

of properties
MEE L
HK$'000
FHAT

2009
ZZTNF
Withholding
taxes
R
HK$'000
FABT

Total
@t
HK$'000
FHIT

At 1 January 2009 RZZEZENF—HA—H 720 155 875
Deferred tax charged to the income  FERRW SRR <
statement during the year* RAETEIE * 1,093 341 1,434
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZZEZNF+=A
31 December 2009 =T —HZEERIE
BfEBE 1,813 496 2,309
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30. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets

Group

®n—A—AH
Deferred tax charged to the income statement £ A Y28 R IR 2 IR FE i T8 *
during the year* (2009: including a charge of (ZZEZNFE : BFFRREE)

At 1 January

HK$316,000 due to a change in tax rate)

Gross deferred tax assets at 31 December

BERE

* Total deferred tax charged to the income statement during the year amounted to
HK$1,789,000 (2009: HK$3,694,000) (note 10).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$23,279,000
(2009: HK$39,309,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and/or due to the
unpredictability of future taxable profit streams of the companies in
which the losses arose, and it is currently not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

i 0Bk 316,000 % 7T)
Rt -A=t—BZEEHRREA

30. EAERIH ()

EERIBEE
REH
Losses available

for offsetting against
future taxable profits

EEE SRR
FERBURR 2 R
2010 2009
—g-8F —2INF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T Fisi
591 2,851
(591) (2,260)
- 591

* FE AR s & I 2 EAEF 488 4 1,789,000
BT (ZFEZFA 4 : 3,694,000 ) (Kfat 10) »

RBEHREER - AEERBBEL
o e SR 151 18 5 18 49 23,279,000 8 7T (=
T4 : 39,309,000 7T ) Al £ IR
HEHELBEQR 2 KRR ERY G
Mo AERFEARGRRE - BRZF
BHEREEE —RBETHREHEIMEB
RARHRBNZENE R B RKRE
ARBCULASRIR T3 18 1 AT TR A K2 30 s
K] BEH BSR4 ) P AR VS SR A 75 1
B BRUEARRZFERERECHEE
o

NERRASEEERAR —FT-—FFFH
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30. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, in respect of certain of the
subsidiaries of the Group established in Mainland China, no
deferred tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it
is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland
China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately HK$465,000 at 31 December 2010 (2009:
HK$282,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

30.

IEAEDLE ()

RIEP BB EREHE - R B A
SN ZHNEREREIMEEE TR EE
RI0RTEHH X HH - BB ER =
ST NF—A—HEEKR TEAR=
TR F+_A=+—BZBREL
A o fisi P B A B SN R B PTAE )
AR B ERTERK - BRI ERARIK
ZTBHME - KEEEA 2 HE 5%
F10% - At B—EZENE—A—H
f o ANEEERZERPBRAMAKT 2
M8 A R FTE £ B FIE DIk 2 IR B8
AR -

RBEHHEEER  AEBWERER
PEAMK 2 ETHEBARKRERZEA
TR TR NI B 2 BB RERIR T
I - RARERRR  RAIRARE
HEHMB AR T ARAIRE D K& S BT o
R-E-ZTF+_A=1+—B HEH
BAtzMEARRERBcERE
BAEH465000E T(ZTETNF :
282,00087T) » MAEE I E|AZERE
RIEETRIARIE

ARG E R HBERIR S mELE
PSR -
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31. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

Authorised:
1,000,000,000 (2009: 1,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

EERBA

Issued and fully paid: BEITRERRA
252,728,198 (2009: 252,728,198)

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital, share premium account and shares held under the
restricted share award scheme is as follows:

1,000,000,000 A& (
1,000,000,000 %)
FIREEO0.1078 7T 2 T imAx

V@IS
& 2

2010 2009
—g-8F —2TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T Fis

ZETNF

100,000 100,000

252,728,198 % (ZZ T N4F :
252,728,198 %)
FAEEO0.108 T 2 LA

25,273 25,273

ARFE BT EBIA - M1 % E
RARE AR 51015 M At B A 2 B
REBZHEMT :

Shares
Number Share held under the
of shares Issued premium restricted share
in issue capital account  award scheme
REERH
B&fT E&fT e HE
RAHE BAx  RHeER BEzRH as
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL AL AL
At 1 January 2009 RZEENE—A—A 253,862,198 25,386 237,452 (4,271) 268,567
Repurchase of shares BEERG (a) (2,146,000) (214) = = (214)
Share options exercised TibiERkE (b) 1,012,000 101 1,041 = 1,142
Reduction of share premium BRI R ERR
account and transfer to b NN
contributed surplus (c) - - (200,000) - (200,000)
Vesting of shares held under the AR &I {7 128
restricted share award scheme HEEN T 33 = = = 325 325
At 31 December 2009 and RZTENE
at 1 January 2010 +-A=t-Bk
—2-%4-f-H 252,728,198 25,273 38,493 (3,946) 59,820
Purchase of shares held under the B B AR &Ik 17 B 2]
restricted share award scheme BT RG 3 - - - (3,048) (3,048)
Vesting of shares held underthe BRIk {7 12E)
restricted share award scheme SEE TRGE 3 - - - 589 589
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-ZF+-A=1-H 252,728,198 25,273 38,493 (6,405) 57,361

NERRASEEERAR —FT-—FFFH

115



116

Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bi#&3R&EMsE (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

31.

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company repurchased its own
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

31. BA (&)
B 7E

(@) BHE-TTNAF+-A=+—BHLFER"

T

Number Highest Lowest
of shares price paid price paid Aggregate
repurchased per share per share price paid

sz s isZh]
ZFRER G BREHG isan]
Month/year BERAE BEERE BIXER AEHER
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FAT
January 2009 —ZEZNF—A 744,000 0.72 0.65 508
February 2009 —TTNE=R 1,402,000 0.92 0.72 1,210
2,146,000 1,718

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly, the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.
The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of HK$1,504,000 was
charged to the contributed surplus.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2009, the subscription rights
attaching to 1,012,000 share options of the Company were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$1.128 per share (note 32), resulting in the issue of
1,012,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.10 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of approximately HK$1,142,000.

(c) Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 25 May 2009, the Company reduced the amount
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company
of HK$200,000,000 and transferred the credit arising therefrom to the
contributed surplus. Further details of which are also set out in a circular of
the Company dated 23 April 2009.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the share
options issued under the schemes are included in note 32 to the
financial statements.

Restricted shares

Details of the Company’s restricted share award scheme and the
restricted shares held under the scheme are included in note 33
to the financial statements.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

BEBRMHEEE - At - ARRZBET
B AIZ W B B 0 2 B IR © 3 AT R [ B
X2 E 21,504,000 7T * ERFA

(b) BE-FTAFT_A=+—HILEFE"
AR 1,012,00017 A2 T R IS T 42
RBESK 11288 T T (17 32) - XK
171,012,000 X FREEO0.10BTLZ AR
AEAR MBRRXAZAREKEOR
1,142,000/ 7T °

© BREARAR-_ZZNFAA-_THAR
TeBRRBEAE LBRBZEHRER -
2R 2% B HI L A AR 40 04 (B R 2 HE PR AR
200,000,000 7T + I ¥ 51tk 2E A 2 AE AR
BEGARS - E—THBETHARAAF
FHRR—ZTNFMA-T=AZ8HK °

B
BRAA R BB 8 MR IR L AT 81 3%
TR 2 FHIB BN B IS S PRE 32

HIR &R AD
AR EVER GRS B B AR IR LT
B ZBERBIRMFE - NP R
HHIFE33 -
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The Company operates a share option scheme adopted in 2002
(the “2002 Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. The 2002 Scheme
entitles the holders of share options granted under the scheme to
subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company at any time during
the exercisable periods of the options. Eligible participants of
the 2002 Scheme include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees of the
Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, the Company’s shareholders, and any non-controlling
shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries. The 2002 Scheme
became effective on 30 May 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the 2002 Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
2002 Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

ARAR —ET ZF RN AR
([T _F518])  TZ2BNAY
AEEEBRUELERM A ER2 A
EREHENREY c —TE &SI
THRARBZEIMETERE AL
BF - RBRENITESRA - BRRE
ARBIZEBR - — ST _F5EIZA
ERSEERRARAESR(BREEY
HHBTER)  AKREHMES AN
SEHBERIREZHER A58
BEP  ARBBRREARBMERRZ
EAIIEIERRR - — ST _F5TEIRZ
ZE_FRA=Z+THER I BRI
SITEHRIERT - BRFFEIBNZ B R
ATFERDAERR -

BRE_TT_F58  AREMERH
ZHARITEERESE RZ A HFHEE
TEREARBEAREERITRO 2
10% - WEAI+—EAHM  REE-F
E_FFEMBTRERSEERI B
PR EIT 2R BB XZEAREE
i A 2 2 BITRRD 2 1% ° (Efal i —
B EIR AR 2 AR RS IRRN AR
RRgL#bE -

RYARAES  TBASKEERR
EWEFEMHEA L ZERBASZLR
BEILIFMITESHE © thsh - IRME
i+ —EASRRR T AR R EERERK
BYFATEFAWNFEMBEALZ
EABREBAR R AR EMRREZE
BTN 20.1% - KB B@BRE &
BURBARARRONBERERL B8
Z fBI&EtE) #3815,000,000 & 7T - BIZA
ERERRAE EISRRILE -
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONTINUED)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period

of the share options granted is determinable by the directors,

commences after certain vesting period and ends on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the share options

or the expiry date of the 2002 Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock

Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the da

offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange

closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
immediately preceding the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
vote at shareholders’” meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the 2002
Scheme during the year:

At 1 January n—A—H
Exercised during the year FRITE

Expired during the year F A 5| Hf

At 31 December Bnt+-—A=+—8

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, canc

or lapsed during the year and subsequent to the end of the

reporting period.
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32. BRAESHE (&)

RERHBREATNIES AHE
2BANEM  MERARAINAH’LE
TTZEBARE - FIROBREZ1TE
HHEEEETE  YHETHRBHRA
% MmEm B BT GEREEBEER
s+ FH T _FFrE 2 HHA
(ABREERE) -

and

BRRE2TEERESTEETE  A1H
ERTIHMER ZESE : () ARAK
1R 2 BB AR B B B X P 2 T
B RMAAARNNERIRE B
Al AR 5 B B 2 A 2 T (E o

te of

days

BREY &R T HESE AP SRR
BRARGREZHER

orto

AT ERBRE T T ZF5H &M ARTT
17 B AR -
2010
—E—2F
Weighted
average Weighted
exercise Number of average  Number of
price options exercise price options
In#EEg S
THEE BREHE TR(E BREHE
HK$ HK$
per share ‘000 per share {0[0[0]
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- - 1.128 (1,306)

REARBERREEBER - BIEX
AR BREER L 1T - WA
R o

elled



31 December 2010 —Z—Z&F+—-A=+—H

On 22 May 2008, the Company adopted a restricted share
award scheme (the “Award Scheme”) under which shares of the
Company (the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to selected
employees (including directors) of any members of the Group
(the “Selected Employees”) in accordance with the provisions of
the Award Scheme and an irrevocable trust (the “Trust”) was also
established by the Company for the purpose of the Award Scheme.
The Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date and,
unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date. Further details of the Award Scheme are
also set out in a circular of the Company dated 29 April 2008.

The aggregate number of Awarded Shares currently permitted to
be awarded under the Award Scheme throughout the duration of
the Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid limit,
the maximum number of Awarded Shares which may be awarded
under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 2% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company for any 12-month period up to and
including the date of the relevant grant. The maximum number of
Awarded Shares which may be awarded to a Selected Employee
under the Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the year end date of the preceding
financial year of the Company.

Pursuant to the rules governing the operation of the Award
Scheme (the “Scheme Rules”), the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) shall select the Selected Employees and
determine the number of Awarded Shares to be awarded. The
Board shall cause to pay the trustee of the Trust (the “Trustee”)
the purchase price and the related expenses from the Company’s
resources for the shares of the Company to be purchased by the
Trustee. The Trustee is a third party appointed by the Board for the
administration of the Award Scheme. The Trustee shall purchase
from the market such number of shares of the Company awarded
as specified by the Board and shall hold such shares until they are
vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules.

RZZEZNFREA=-+=H ' ARFHE
M—IEA R HI D B AT B ([ 2B &t
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B(REES) ([KHBES ) #BRARQ
ARk ([EEEAR (7 1) + AR R INEEEEE
IR — B A ERE ({55 -
HETEIE RN ERM B AR - BRIERR
1IEERT » BEZBRTTFERER -
HENETEIE — BB IE N A AR B
ATEBEENENA-+ABZEK -

BRERZEERF RN SIPREARh 2
RE IR ABREBSARRTREHT
PRARZ10% ° ER Ll IRER - B =406
BB B(EREZA) ZE0+ @A H
A - Rz R BRI R 2 REN R D &
REE - TMEEBARRE—EMKF
BFEERZDEITRA2% - RIEER
sHEIF A E R R BE R B R 2 R
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When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions,
which might include service and/or performance conditions,
specified by the Board at the time of making the award and
become entitled to the shares of the Company forming the
subject of the award, the Trustee shall transfer the relevant
vested Awarded Shares to that employee at no cost. The Selected
Employee however is not entitled to receive any income or
distribution, such as dividend derived from unvested the Awarded
Shares allocated to him/her. The said income or distributions
shall be used by the Trustee for payment of the Trustee’s fees or
expenses or for purchase of further shares of the Company for the
Award Scheme.

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any
shares of the Company held under the Trust, including, inter alia,
the Awarded Shares and further shares of the Company acquired
out of the income derived therefrom.

The fair value of the Awarded Shares awarded was based on the
market value of the Company’s shares at the grant date and the
Group recognised an equity-settled share-based payment expense
of HK$1,237,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
HK$732,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2010, 690,000 Awarded
Shares (2009: 380,000 Awarded Shares) were vested and
transferred to certain executive directors of the Company and
certain employees of the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2010, upon the vesting of certain Awards Shares, the
carrying value of the shares held under the restricted share award
scheme account of the Company was reduced by HK$589,000
(2009: HK$325,000) and such amount was transferred to the
share-based payment reserve of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Trustee acquired
for the Award Scheme 2,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
through purchases on the open market at a total cost (including
related transaction costs) of approximately HK$3,048,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, 1,270,000 Awarded
Shares were awarded to certain employees of the Group, which
will be transferred to the employees at nil consideration, subject
to the satisfaction of certain service and performance conditions,
upon vesting in various tranches, with the last tranche ending on
30 April 2015.
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33. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

No ordinary shares of the company were acquired to the Award
Scheme and no Award Shares was awarded during the year ended
31 December 2009.

The following Awarded Shares were awarded and outstanding
under the Award Scheme during the year:

33. ARFIRDEREE S (&)

RBE-BEAST-A=T-AL
T BRARRIABARAAEE
B IR SRR -

FR - RERBFIERD RERITRE
Z RERA NS

2010 2009
—g2-2F “EThEF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
fair value unvested fair value unvested
at grant date Awarded at grant date Awarded
per share Shares per share Shares
RELHAH R B &
FRMNE REE Bz ntE KRR
FIHAEE RBROEE THATE ZERHEE
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
At 1 January n—HA—H 0.61 4,620,000 0.61 5,000,000
Awarded during the year FRERH 1.35 1,270,000 = =
Vested during the year FERNEFEBE 0.61 (690,000) 0.61 (380,000)
Forfeited during the year FRE LRI 1.35 (160,000) - -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~” 0.77 5,040,000 0.61 4,620,000

QOut of the total of 6,270,000 Award Shares awarded during the
year and in prior years, 2,000,000 Awarded Shares were awarded
to the executive directors of the Company.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 5,040,000 Awarded Shares unvested under the Award
Scheme, which represented approximately 2.0% of the Company’s
shares in issue at that date.

RA 6,270,000 % BB (D - B M
A #1178 %92 E 2,000,000 % 2 )
BA o

REELLEMBEREE B - ARFAIRE
REFENAGEBEZRBROBE R
5,040,000 * (AR R AR ZH Z B #
TN #12.0% °
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34. RESERVES

(a)

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 38 to
39 of the financial statements.

The Group’s contributed surplus originally represented the
excess of the aggregate net asset value of the subsidiaries
acquired at the date of their acquisition pursuant to the
Group reorganisation on 29 April 1998 over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations for
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, a portion of the profits of
the Group’s subsidiaries, which are established in the PRC,
has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted as
to use. The subsidiaries are not required to effect any further
transfer when the amount of the reserve funds reaches 50%
of its registered capital.

The Group’s goodwill reserve represents goodwill which
arose on the acquisition of certain subsidiaries in prior years
and remains eliminated against consolidated reserves, as
further explained in note 16 to the financial statements.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

34. #E

(a)
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34. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 34. f#E (&)

(b)  Company (h) =AAHFH
Shares
held under
Share Share-based the restricted
premium  Contributed payment Retained  share award
account surplus reserve profits scheme Total
REBRH
RAHR iE R
RGBER PN e RERN  BELRH &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETL THTL THL TAL TAL TEL
At 1 January 2009 R-ZENE-R-H 237452 2622 1821 435 4,271) 238,059
Loss for the year rEREE - - - (17) - (17)
Issue of shares BRH 31 1,041 = = = = 1,041
Repurchase of shares BEkA 3l = (1,504) = = = (1,504)
Vesting of shares held under the  ZBRAR &1k 128
restricted share award scheme  STEIETHEERD 33 - - (325) - 325 -
Share award arrangement BT 33 = = 732 = = 732
Reduction of share premium — BIEROEEE R
account and transfer to BV EN N
contributed surplus 31 (200,000) 200,000 = = = =
Final and special 2008 BER-ZEN\E
dividends declared REARERIRE = 172 - - - 172
Interim 2009 dividend ETNFRERS 12 = (9.916) - - = (9,916)
Proposed final and special WE-EENE
2009 dividends REAREAIRE 12 = (14,836) - - - (14,836)
At31December 009and  R-EENE
at 1 January 2010 +-B=1-Bk
—“-%#-f-H 38493 176,488 2228 418 (3,946) 213,681
Loss for the year rEREE - - - (12) = (12)
Purchase of shares held under  BERBR #IR7 %8
the restricted share award SEBTHEARR
scheme 33 - - - - (3,048) (3,048)
Vesting of shares held under the  SBRER IR
restricted share award scheme  $2EJit 2B T
Rk 33 - - (589) - 589 -
Share award arrangements i 2B bt 33 = = 1,237 = = 1,237
Final and special 2009 BER-EENF
dividends declared RAREARE - 114 - - - 114
Interim 2010 dividend “2-TERERE 12 - (14,808) - - - (14,808)
Proposed final 2010 dividend ~ EHE—F 5%
RERS 12 - (14,808) = = - (14,808)
At 31 December 2010 RZZE-ZF
+-A=1-H 38493 146,986 2876 406 (6,405) 182356

RRBZHEABBRRERER
—AANFEAZ+TABZE
BEHE FRESHBARZHE
H ZEMERARZEEEFE
HBHARRRERBAEMET
Bt 2 EfE °

The Company’'s contributed surplus originally represented
the excess of the aggregate net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired at the date of their acquisition
pursuant to the Group reorganisation on 29 April 1998,
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor.

B—NAN—FARERAE A
AIRETBER TR ABARSRR
BERERDIK °

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, a company may
make distributions to its members out of the contributed
surplus in certain circumstances.
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor
The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to three years. The terms of the
leases generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according
to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2010, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants falling due as follows:

—&FR
F_EFRF(BEEERF)

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

(b) Aslessee
The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.

At 31 December 2010, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

—&FR
F_EENF(BREEERF)

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
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35. WEHERH

(a)

(b)

ERHEA

AEEREEEMETHHEER
REWME (M 15)  FE 2
NF-—EZ=FFF - BEHK—
REFBAPXNRERS - XA
REERRITMAEHAREE -

R-F—FTF+-_HA=+—8H"
AEBRBEEEBSFZTR T
HIR JEm 2 TRl BEHE £ HE
RBERER 2 ZERSRENT

Group
AEE
2010 2009
—B-8F —TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THBT
1,424 1,286
1,004 125
2,428 1,411
ERAEBEA

AEBEREBELEHELHEER
ETHMRAEME - REMEMZ
EZHEMNF—E=%F-

R=F-—FE+=A=+—8"
AR EIREN TIHRER 2T
TH TR B EEN 2

XEHSLENT :
Group
REE
2010 2009
—2-%F —TThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THBT
4,558 4,294
1,680 5,209
6,238 9,503
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36.

37.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

(a) Guarantees were given to certain banks by the Company
for performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks
in relation to certain contracts undertaken by the Group
amounting to HK$18,230,000 (2009: HK$22,338,000),
of which HK$2,637,000 (2009: HK$6,097,000) had been
utilised.

(b) The Company issued corporate guarantees to certain
suppliers of the Group in connection with certain purchases
from those suppliers. As at 31 December 2010, the
outstanding amounts due to those suppliers by the Group
amounted to HK$150,000 (2009: HK$150,000).

(c) Guarantees were given to a bank by the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company in connection with
certain banking facilities granted to a subsidiary amounting
to HK$156,000,000 (2009: Nil), of which HK$26,520,000
(2009: Nil) had been utilised.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had
the following material transactions with related parties during the

year:

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

=

36. HAKE

37.

RBEHREER - AARRMBEREA
ELBE I KARBENT :

(@) BETRITRAEEAEZETAE
#FR A £ 18,230,000/ L (=&
THE : 22,338,000 1) 2 BAY
1REE YER - HF 2637000487

—ZEE N 6,097,000 T)E
A -

(b) ARAREHAANEEETHERS
BEmMRAZSHEREL QAR
R MR_F—FF+_A=1—
B AKESBRZEHRERZK
BIEFIE A 150,000 8 T(ZEF
JLEE ¢ 150,000 7T) °

) ARBRAREETHERR
—HNBRRMERE T RE
156,000,000/ TL( ZZZF I & :
) ZRITRMERRITREER
H 126,520,000 T(Z T T A
F:R)EPA-

BREALRS
MRS BREEMBAFRZRS

RHEREHRIN AEBFRNLET TS
BEABEALRS :

AEETEEEABZMEIT ¢

Short term employee benefits R EEEF
Equity-settled share-based payment expense  PRHEAE & LA RS B
Post-employment benefits BRI 12 1E

XNEEEEABZMERE

Total compensation paid to key
management personnel

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to
the financial statements.

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
10,313 13,733

484 442

112 143

10,909 14,318

EEME &~ HPHIFERMEHREH
8

MEZGEERRAT —Z—2FFRK

.
bt )
¥ 5
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. MiIITRAz9E
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZHAFETARREHELEER 2K
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: HLEEWT :
2010 Group —E-EF REE
Financial assets MREE

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

BOTELBRAR
ZHBEE
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
upon initial Held for Loans and financial
recognition trading  receivables assets
RS
TR
EEf ERRK AfHE
ZR® REEE FE W IE BBEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET TET THET THET TET
Available-for-sale investment Al &R E - - - 1,850 1,850
Trade and bills receivables JEWE SRR
KRB - - 74,441 - 74,441

Financial assets included in s ATERNFIE « 84 N
prepayments, deposits and HibEdiE s

other receivables BBEE - - 6,226 - 6,226
Financial assets at fair value A FELBHAEZ
through profit or loss MIBEE 847 10,648 - - 11,495
Pledged bank deposits BEEHRTER - - 37,560 - 37,560
Cash and cash equivalents HENERBEEEE - - 287,501 - 287,501
847 10,648 405,728 1,850 419,073
Financial liabilities BKEE
Financial
liahilities
at fair value
through profit Financial
or loss liahilities at
ROATELER amortised cost Total
ARZHBEE LA 86 B AR
— held for trading HlRz
-BEEE o 3= U @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET FET
Trade payables ERE SRR - 56,370 96,370
Other payables Hith fEA 318 - 25,573 25,573
Financial liabilities included in ST AR IR 2
accruals A’ - 12,329 12,329
Derivative financial instruments PEBBIA 202 - 202
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ESRITEE - 26,520 26,520
202 120,792 120,994
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED) 38. MIITEZSE (&)
2009 Group —ETHE REE
Financial assets BigEE

Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

BATELERAR
LIBEE
Designated Available-
as such Held-to- for-sale
upon initial Held for maturity Loans and financial
recognition trading  investments receivables assets Total
R SRR R Bk AL E
(= k e HEEE HERE G HBEE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T THT THT THL BT
Held-to-maturity securities SR HHES - - 498 = = 498
Available-for-sale investment HERE - - = = 1,650 1,650
Trade and bills receivables EUE SRR REKREE = = = 61,764 = 61,764
Financial assets included in SABARE  BER
prepayments, deposits BRI
and other receivables BKEE = = = 2,855 = 2855
Financial assets at fair value through  $RA TEZBZAE L
profit or loss HEEE 4,886 8900 = = = 13,786
Pledged bank deposits BERROER - = = 11,829 = 11,829
Cash and cash equivalents BeRERBLEE = = = 288053 = 288053
4,886 8,900 498 364,501 1,650 380,435
Financial liabilities BHRAasE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
LABE 88 P AR
R
g aE
HK$'000
FHET
Trade payables BB SR 54,051
Other payables E At R RIR 18,456
Financial liabilities included in accruals AR RIEZ IS AE 12,124
84,631
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (CONTINUED) 38. BT RAZDHE(HE)

Financial assets MKEE
Company
RATF
Loans and receivables
EXR R EWFIE
2010 2009
—E-ZfF —TETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT T
Cash and cash equivalents RERERRSEE 1,433 1,122
Financial liabilities g =R

Company
¥ N/NE]
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
DB R AR Rz EaE

2010 2009
—E-BF C—TTIF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT

Accruals FEETFRE 209 281
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of
the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and liabilities
approximated to their fair values.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank
deposits, trade and bills receivables, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
amounts due from subsidiaries and interest-bearing bank
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on

quoted market prices.

The fair value of the available-for-sale investment is based on
available market prices.

39.

NERGERERRAR

AFERAFESRES

REBEHREEER - AEBRAQF
BEEMMBABEZRAEEEAFE
E °

\m}x-\‘{H-

2
T

St

MBEERBBEZAFHENAZTABRE
X577 (RARFREERIN BRI S
T2ARZEEAK - TITERKRR
Ty RAERT R E -

RehFRRSEE CERRITER
R BEESRFRERER - STATR
MHIR - e REMRERRAZMHE
E - BNESKRN st AEMBENFR
RIETHRIRZHHAE - UK B AR
FRELRMBRTEEZ A FEERRK
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (CONTINUED)

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with a
creditworthy financial institution. Derivative financial instruments,
including forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, are
measured using valuation techniques similar to forward pricing
and swap models, using present value calculations. The models
incorporate various market observable inputs including the credit
quality of the counterparty, foreign exchange spot and forward
rates and interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps are the same as their

fair values.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and

disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted)

in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques
for which all inputs which have a significant effect on
the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or

indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market

data (unobservable inputs)
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39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (CONTINUED) 39. AV ERAFESERER(E)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AT EEHRERE (&)
Assets measured at fair value: EAFHEGEZEE :
Group REHE
As at 31 December 2010 R-E-—FFF+-_H=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1B FE2[E E3IE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FET FHx
Available-for-sale investment: AHERE :
Club membership debenture effefEs - 1,850 - 1,850
Financial assets at fair value through & A FERKEBZRAEZ
profit or loss: B EE :
Held-for-trading BEEER 10,648 - - 10,648
Designated as financial assets BEREATE
at fair value through profit BEHEARZ
or loss MEE 847 - - 847
11,495 1,850 - 13,345
As at 31 December 2009 R-ZFFENF+—HA=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1 F2 £3 et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T FHL T
Available-for-sale investment: AHHERE
Club membership debenture SMeEES - 1,650 = 1,650
Financial assets at fair value through &AL ELIBZE AR 2
profit or loss: BB EE
Held-for-trading BEET 8,900 = = 8,900
Designated as financial assets EEREATE
at fair value through profit REZARZ
or loss HBEE 4,886 — - 4,886
13,786 1,650 - 15,436
The Company did not have any financial assets measured at fair ARARIRZE—ZEFR_ZETNF+=
value as at 31 December 2010 and 2009. A=1+—B¥EE( IR AT EFTEZH
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FRFIBRF2EMEZRANFEE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into 2 ME3EIMEE(EE AsksE T o

or out of Level 3.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) i35 3R & MizE (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (CONTINUED) 39. AV ERAFESRIEE (E)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AT ESHERE (E)
Liabilities measured at fair value: EAFEFEZEE
Group NEE
As at 31 December 2010 R-E—FF+-_H=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E FE2E EIE FoHy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FET FHx FHT
Derivative financial instruments T4 E T A - 202 - 202
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair AEBR-_ZTNF+-_A=+—8AW
value as at 31 December 2009. EAMRATEFECHBAE -
The Company did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair RARIRZE—ZFRZFTNF+=
value as at 31 December 2010 and 2009. A=t+— B EEIRZAFETEZH
HafE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) Bf#&#R &5 Mist (&)
31 December 2010 —E—ZF+=-A=+—H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include pledged bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and interest-bearing bank
borrowings. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to finance the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables,
other receivables, deposits, held-to-maturity securities, trade and
other payables, financial liabilities included in accruals, derivative
financial instruments, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, and available-for-sale investment, which mainly arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price
risk, debenture price risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in
relation to derivative financial instruments are set out in note 2.4 to
the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and time
deposits with a floating interest rate.

The Group enters into interest rate swaps, in which the Group
agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between
fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference to
an agreed-upon notional principal amount to manage certain of its
interest rate risk.

40.

NERGERERRAR

M EEEEREREE

AEE TZPHTABEETERR
TER RERFRRTEE WA
RITEE - WEMBTAZTEZRETD
RAKREZXGRE - AREREMZ
BUMBEENMBE  WERKE SRR N
EURE  HUEKEIA  2E  {FE
AMES  BNESERA R EMEN R
B AtARFTRBEZMBEE  (TERM
BIA BRATFELBEARIMBE
ERFHEERE  WEVHEERE
BXIEERELAXEBKEE -

AEBEFBTRAELZ T BRARAFER
R\ SNERRR - EERR - BRAER
Rk EFERRR RSB ESRER -
EXeRMIRE T XA ERESIA
HERR 2 BR - NEEABITEN
TAZ ST BRENMBGHREMNT2.4

F=E

AEBFEEM SN REFH AR 2 ER
2 EAKEF RN RITEBIFEE X

FAEZREREMFRER -

AEERIZMEEREH - B - AK
BREREFERE  RELEHE BN
EEMEEHEREECBIEERER
NERETHERER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) i35 3R & MizE (&)
31 December 2010 —E—Z4F+=-HA=+—H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate bank balances and time deposits).

2010 —E-TF
Hong Kong dollar BT
United States dollar eI

RMB AR
Hong Kong dollar BT
United States dollar Ee

RMB AR
2009 —ETNF
Hong Kong dollar BT
United States dollar Eoe

RMB AR
Hong Kong dollar BT
United States dollar ETT

RMB AR
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40. BBEREEBFRBR ()

M =Eb ()
TR EMBERMERGHTE IS

T ANEE 2 BR B AT A GE BT B
NERITERRERFRAZTE)Y
MEAERREHIRE S FRIEE -

Group

REE
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit

basis points hefore tax
B2, BRBIADER
CR2) #m CEd)
HK$'000

T

(25) (217)
(25) (167)
(25) (321)
25 217
25 167
25 321
(25) (229)
(25) (152)
(25) (200)
25 229
25 152
25 200



Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 7% 3R & Mis: (&)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-H=+—H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currency. The Group also uses forward currency
contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk arising from interest-
bearing bank borrowings denominated in United States dollars.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the United
States dollar and RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

2010 —E-=2F

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against WL 5 E TR E
United States dollar

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB ST ARKEE

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against i 78 7T W, =TT HHE
United States dollar

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB it 7T 34, A R EEFHE

2009 —ERNF

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against fiK P& 7T H 2 T E
United States dollar

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT ARKEE

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against i 78 7T W, =TT HHE
United States dollar

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB it 7T 34, A R EEFHE

40.

gk E T B R R EER ()

SN LB

AEEERZ LWEEER - LtRRE
ZRANEEREUERZEMNEER
PASNES # P ERER MM B SR EE A 2 PR
ARRAX - ARBBERTERINES
MAEHH R TR E 2 5t BIRITIEREER
ESNEE R o

TRENEMBEMEBREFTE T
AT AEERBERELEER 2B
AEN(AEREERBBEAFERR)
BETRMARBEXRSIBAIGL HREE
ZHREIEE -

Group

rEEH
Increase/
(decrease) in
exchange

Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
hefore tax
Bz LA BR®E AR A
(FBg) & (Fd)

% HK$'000

B T

rate

5 1,736
5 2,369
(5) (1,736)
(5) (2,369)
S 2,163
5 8,010
) (2,163)
(%) (8,010)
NERRASEEERAR —FT-—FFFH
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31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain
extent subject to certain credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, held-
to-maturity securities, listed debt investments, available-for-sale
investment, and deposits and other receivables mainly arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments. The Company is also
exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial guarantees,
further details of which are disclosed in note 36 to the financial
statements.

Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as 5.4% (2009: 14.7%) of the total
trade and bills receivables of the Group were due from certain
departments/units of the Government of the HKSAR, the Group’s
largest customer. Save as the above, there were no significant
concentrations of credit risk at the end of the reporting period.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed in
note 22 to the financial statements.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 25) as at
31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009. The Group’s listed
equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange and are
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

40.

B b B I B R R BUR ()
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B 73R4 MfsE (48)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-H=+—H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

2010 —E-ZF

Investments listed in Hong Kong: ERBEMZIRE
— Held-for-trading - FEEE

2009 —ETNF

Investments listed in Hong Kong: EEBLMZERE
— Held-for-trading ~IHEEE

Debenture price risk

The Group has a club debenture investment in Hong Kong. The
fair value of the club debenture investment is affected by market
forces and other factors. The Group holds it for non-trading
purposes.

0. BiEMEREHZERBEK (&)

ESEL 46 )

TRIINEMBEMESEFTE B
RN RARFHERB B &R BRARE
RBEHRAEAZ A FERAEES

Carrying Increase/
amount decrease

of equity in profit
investments before tax

BRBE AR R

BABREZ
SREE &, mD

HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT THAT

10,648 1,065

8,900 890

BEHEERR
AEERBELEZGRESKRE - 8
BHEREZAVFERXMHHEREMBE
ERE - AEEREEMESLIFEER
BER%E -

NERRASEEERAR —FT-—FFFH
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31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-HA=+—H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40.

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term. In the
management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and bank balances, and time deposits deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Cash flows of the
Group are closely monitored by senior management on an ongoing
basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

MisEREE R R RBER (&)

RBESRER

AEEZ BRIERERENE S UE
NEEHMERERZRDESHFR B
ERSEeERE  ARBERENER
EEERARHRHEASELEMTR
& RIRTTEHRERFR - WRIERR
EREZRBERITE - 2R EEE
RETERAEEZRERE -

REERE S NRTIRA A ER R
EHESEE BB R E B RN
T

2010
—2-%F%
Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
==
REREE SR={EA T=EAR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THET THET
Trade payables [ERE SR 52,914 3,065 391 56,370
Other payables HibENTIE - 25,573 - 25,573
Financial liabilities included in FTAERFIE L
accruals BBEE - 12,329 - 12,329
Derivative financial instruments TEPBIA - - 202 202
Interest-bearing bank borrowings* M BSRITIEE 26,520 - - 26,520
Guarantees given to banks for HRBEASEAZ AT
performance bonds/guarantees BRBLRORE BR
issued in relation to certain MRRITIRME 2 EIR
contracts undertaken by the Group 2,637 - - 2,637
82,071 40,967 593 123,631
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued) B 73R4 MfsE (48)
31 December 2010 —ZE—ZEF+=-H=+—H

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. BriERE bR ETE B R R BUR (F)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued) REESERE (&)

2009
“TTNE
Less than 3o less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
=&
REKER PR=MEA +-AAR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEx TEx TAT
Trade payables EHEZER 50,432 459 3,160 54,051
Other payables H b TR = 18,456 = 18,456
Financial liabilities included AR A MBAE
in accruals - 12,124 - 12,124
Guarantees given to banks for RBEAEEEELET
performance bonds/guarantees BNBHBENREER
issued in relation to certain MRRITRE 2 ER
contracts undertaken by the Group 6,097 - - 6,097
56,529 31,039 3,160 90,728
@ Interest-bearing bank borrowings in the amount of HK$26,520,000 (2009: * Mt S SRITIEE £ 58 26,520,000/ 8 T (—EF

Nil) contain a repayment on-demand clause giving the bank the unconditional
right to call the loan at any time and, therefore, for the purpose of the above
maturity profile, the total amount is classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors of the Company do not believe
that the borrowings will be called in their entirety within 12 months, and they
consider that the loans will be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates
as set out in the loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering:
the financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the financial
statements, and the lack of events of default.

In accordance with the terms of the borrowings, the contractual undiscounted
payments of HK$26,794,000 (2009: Nil) at 31 December 2010 are repayable
within one year.

NE - B) BRRITHBGHEMRER 2K
ERE T2 R0 St Bt bt B BRI
F o REDER REREER] -

BERLIGTRE  ARREFHREZ
EREFTEN T EAAKEREERE
B - MERRE R AT EEE R EER - it
HAHEE R R A S ER M B RS E R B
ZEABGROR e I SR BE A KA o

RRIEEER R —ZF+_A=+—
H - A#KRITIRFR26,794,0008 7T (= F
TNE  T)AR—FREE -

NERRASEEERAR —FT-—FFFH
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. MHEKREEBEZERBUER (E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued) RENE S B (F)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the AKRABRBEELHERITRNRATTER
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted MEBHAERN KGR EBBR
payments, is as follows: m

Company 2010
—2-25
Less than

On demand 3 months Total
REREE DPR={EA st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET THET T T

Other payables and accruals HEMEMAZRIER
JE&tFRIA - 209 209
Guarantees given to banks for  FEIRIE AN EEARE 2
performance bonds/guarantees & T & 43 H B4

issued in relation to certain 1RB R T ARTT
contracts undertaken R BER
by the Group 2,637 - 2,637
Guarantees given to a bank h—EHEBARZ
in connection with M SSRITIEE MM
interest-bearing bank —MEIRITIR 2 ER
borrowings to a subsidiary 26,520 - 26,520
29,157 209 29,366
2009
—ETNF
Less than
On demand 3 months Total
REREE DR=1{E A 5T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIT T FHIT
Other payables and accruals H b fE S FRIE &
JE&FRIA - 281 281

Guarantees given to banks for IR IR AN E B A 2
performance bonds/guarantees & T & K HEL

issued in relation to certain REE ERMAIRTT
contracts undertaken by TRft 2 PR
the Group 6,097 - 6,097

6,097 281 6,378
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business

and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended

31 December 2010 and 2009.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’

equity.

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the board of directors on 18 March 2011.

40.

41.

NERGERERRAR
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AEEEAERNEEZRNERRER
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REERBEERA BERE@EEE
BB - FHEREBERERE
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Particulars of Properties
Y ETES

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

Units 1, 2 and 3 on 11th Floor
Westlands Centre

No. 20 Westlands Road
Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

Unit No. Al on Level 21

Golden Eagle International Plaza
No. 89 Hanzhong Road

Jianye District

Nanjing

Jiangsu Province

People’s Republic of China (“PRC")

Unit No. 2601 on Level 26

South Tower

Guangzhou World Trade Centre Complex
Nos. 371-375 Huanshi East Road
Dongshan District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

PRC

Factory Unit C on 9th Floor
Yally Industrial Building
No. 6 Yip Fat Street
Aberdeen

Hong Kong

REWHE

&

#l%0m

ERK 2058
ZRT L
1181 -2R3%

g ARHE ([HE])
)

MRm

B

E 895

S ERBE AR
201ALE

R

BRE

BN

RilE

IR R 371 23755
BMERE S ORE
I

26122601 =

&

BBl

E oy
HFETEAE
9RCE

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

Industrial

IXA

Commercial

[SE 3G

Commercial

[GE G

Industrial
T%H

Long term
lease

RHHE

Long term
lease

RHHE

Medium
term lease

FHHE

Medium
term lease

FHIEE

Attributable
interest of

the Group
FEEES
EREI
100%

100%

100%

100%



Five Year Financial Summary & F B EHIE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last

UTRASEBREDEAVRFEZEEAREE - AE
NIFEHMEEZHE  DREAETEZLEEREMK

five financial years, as extracted from the published ¥4 @ WE@EE iﬂi;ﬁﬁ"*ﬁ/@&l LB B RS
audited financial statements and reclassified/restated as B &R E H P 25

appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not form

part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS E4

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=T-HLHFE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
ZE-ZF —TTNF T\ —TELF —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAL FAL FAL FAL
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREEK
REVENUE WA 338,851 400,012 376,386 328,472 207,365
Cost of sales SHERAK (225,741)  (280,372)  (261,894)  (228,474)  (131,820)
Gross profit EF 113,110 119,640 114,492 99,998 75,545
Other income and gains, net Hib AR FE 8,152 2,823 14,689 12,383 13,864
Fair value gains/(losses), net: ATEKE (BE)F8E -
Financial assets at fair value BAFELESZARY
through profit or loss BISEE 615 4,272 (5,406) (358) 813
Derivative financial instruments — PTHEMBIA -TEER
transactions not qualifying as hedges %% 5 (202) = = = =
Investment properties REME 7,440 2,836 (1,146) 4,530 4,192
Selling and distribution costs HERDBHA (31,797)  (33,089)  (34,069)  (35414)  (31,626)
General and administrative expenses —RRTBEX (44,401) (45,269) (45,382) (43,872) (37,390
Other expenses, net HibA S F58 2,829 (442) (3,349) (7,668) (9,996)
Finance costs Bﬁ%% 2| (39) - _ _ _
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM BREER  RTATEF
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 55,707 50,791 39,829 29,599 15,402
Income tax expense MY (6,650) (6,908) (5,172) (814) (1,842)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM AEERAREEE LR
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 2l 49,057 43,883 34,657 28,785 13,560
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEREEKL
Loss for the year from a discontinued ~ AEE R E B & IFRE
operation ES ! - = (2,118) (814) (1,713)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEEF 49,057 43,883 32,539 27,971 11,847
Attributable to: Tﬁ'l)\i)ﬁfﬁ :
Owners of the parent NEEBA 49,057 43,880 33,067 28,142 12,408
Non-controlling interests 3H HE R - 3 (528) (171) (561)
49,057 43,883 32,539 27971 11,847
NEAGEEERLAT —Z—ZFFH
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Five Year Financial Summary (continued) & F 85I E (&)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS & 7&E - S E R IFEFIMER

As at 31 December
RT=A=+—H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

—-BF “TTNF “TT/\F “TTLF “TTAF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000
Tax TET  TER TR TR

TOTAL ASSETS BEHE 515,582 459900 427505 414,176 372916
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEBE (145,874) (108,888)  (91,779)  (84,881)  (63,302)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS JEfT | M R % - - 753 (879) (1,057)

369,708 351,012 336479 328416 308,557

ANNUAL REPORT 2010  Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
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